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Characteristics of GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P HE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —FE—+F+_-HA=1+—HIFFZE

2013 2014 2015 2016

2017

—T—=F —FT--NF —T-—HF TR F ZEB—+tE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FBT FHET FET FEx
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 579,380 499,375 174,741 104,367 110,174
Loss before income tax N ERRIER (14,723) (26,611) (32,991) (45,865) (10,500)
Income tax expense TSR X (1,447 (559) (1,566) (390) (371)
Loss for the year FAEE (16,170) (27,170) (34,557) (46,255) (10,871)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHAE
Total assets BEHLSE 358,012 274,874 196,023 149,790 112,445
Total liabilities BEEE (165,745)  (111,082) (71,966) (74,339) (45,906)
Total equity friELazs 192,267 163,792 124,057 75,451 66,539
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), it is my
pleasure to present the 2017 Annual Report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group continued to rationalise its IT products and services
businesses. In early 2017, following the disposal of a sustained
loss-making operation in China, the operating results of the
Group for 2017 had been improved substantially although an
annual loss remained reported due to losses in the Jewellery
Products segment.

Although revenue from sales of gold and jewellery products
of the Group remained dampened by the uncertainties of the
impacts of global economic and political measures on China
economy, a long-awaited recovery of the gold and jewellery
market in China was observed when an annual growth of 3%
was reported in 2017 that it was the first annual growth since
2013. It was noticeable that the demand for lower-weight and
better designed gold jewellery products, rather than traditional
24 karat gold products, was picking up momentum in the
market.

In the past year, the Group focused in development of new
products tapping in the market trend and effective franchisee
management. With a clear market trend, a bold recovery of the
gold and jewellery market and expecting stable growth of China
economy in 2018 onwards, the Management believed that
decisive investments for enlarging of the Group’s share in the
market became justifying. The management was formulating
the business plans for extending the Group's franchise network,
new product developments according to the market trend as
well as the establishment of on-line shops where feasible.

To support the expansion plans of the business segment, the
Group is in the progress of raising approximately HK$56.9
million by rights issue. The Group will make effective use of
the funds subject to the plans and progress to expand its gold
and jewellery businesses while improving its profitability and
enhancing the returns to our shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of all Board members, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and
business partners of the Group for their continued supports and
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation
to the Directors, management and staff at all levels for their
dedication, hard works and contributions to the Group.

Chong Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 March 2018

IS
AABHIEBARZ2REBANE - HRE
RASEEBBIBENBAL R REEHUS
B WHEE  EBABREMETELICE -
WHTERAREBEHOES - BUARHE B
B -

HEF
£y

&5
—E-N\F=ZATNIH

“EoCAFH HEEABERERAR 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWR DM

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$10,387,000 (2016: HK$42,763,000).

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$110,174,000 (2016: HK$104,367,000).

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise income
contributed to HK$20,997,000 of the Group’s revenue during
the year (2016: HK$19,472,000). The sales of enterprise
software products dropped by 32% to HK$26,948,000 (2016:
HK$39,799,000). Revenue on systems integration business
increased by 98% to HK$12,631,000 (2016: HK$6,386,000)
while revenue on professional services business increased by
28% to HK$49,598,000 (2016: HK$38,710,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

The Group continued to streamline its businesses in 2017. A
sustained loss-making operation of the IT business segment in
China was disposed in early 2017. The operating results of the
Group had been improved substantially although an annual loss
remained reported in 2017.

According to the figures published by The National Bureau of
Statistics of China, the GDP for 2017 full year picked up to 6.9
percent year-on-year that it was the first annual acceleration
for the economy since 2010. The annual growth beat the
government’s target of around 6.5 percent for 2017 and
quickened from 6.7 percent in 2016, the weakest pace in 26
years.

The gold and jewellery market in China had shown an annual
growth of 3% in 2017 that it was the first yearly increase since
2013. The trend of demand for lower-weight, better designed,
higher- margin ‘premium’ gold jewellery products continued to
pick up momentum. Although 24-karat gold still dominated the
market, its market share was fast losing, notably in the first-
and second- tier cities. It was observed that retailers were
shifting their products to incorporate more 18-karat, 22-karat
and 3D hard products. The sales and marketing efforts of the
Group aligned with the move of the retailer.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

In 2017, the Group had not made fresh investments in its
sales of gold and jewellery businesses. Sales in the business
segment was improved through efforts in development of new
products tapping in the market trend and effective franchisee
management. With a clear market trend, a bold recovery of the
gold and jewellery market and expecting stable growth of China
economy in 2018 onwards, the Management believed that
decisive investments for enlarging of the Group’'s share in the
market became justifying.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group remained in a strong
financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$25,675,000
(2016: HK$24,507,000).

The Group monitored its capital structure using the gearing ratio
which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the
Group defined net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprised equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The gearing ratio is not
presented, as the net debt was zero. (2016: zero).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's issued shares were
1,188,460,000 shares (2016: 1,188,460,000 shares). As
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 19 January 2018, the
Group proposed to issue 594,230,000 rights shares (“Rights
Share(s)”) at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per share on the
basis of one Rights Share for every two existing shares held
as at the close of business on 27 February 2018 and the rights
issue is expected to be completed on 28 March 2018. As a
result of the rights issue, the Group's issued shares is expected
to increase to 1,782,690,000 shares upon completion of the
rights issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWR DM

INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any other investment and material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the turnover of the
Jewellery Product segment and the IT Products and Services
segments amounted to HK$20,997,000 (2016: HK$19,472,000)
and HK$89,177,000 (2016: HK$84,895,000) respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the number of employees of the
Group was 301 (2016: 427). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group plans to further develop its jewellery business
through tight co-operations with franchisees. Despite concerns
over uncertainty of the impacts of long-expected inflation,
interest rates raise and restrictive trade policies of some
advanced countries on the global economic growth, it is
believed that Chinese economy will maintain its GDP growth
momentum in the forthcoming years by buoyant domestic
consumption and rapid progress in high-tech manufacturing
facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

The Group believes that gold and jewellery consumption market
of China still has promising potential for growth. Those factors
including economic growth, progress in upscale consumption,
increasing demand from sales stemming on gifts for marriages
and births and the trend for buying gold as a hedge against
inflation support expansion of the market. With successful
experiences in building a strong distribution network of
franchisees, the Group plans to further enlarge its domestic
market share by extending the existing franchise businesses,
development of innovative and exclusive signature products,
launching new product series and also investing in its online
sales businesses that younger consumers in more than 300
cities throughout China are targeted.

To support the expansion plans of the business segment, the
Group is in the progress of raising approximately HK$56.9
million by way of rights issue as at the date of this report. The
Group will make effective use of the funds subject to the plans
and progress to expand its gold and jewellery businesses while
improving its profitability and enhancing the interest of our
Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(1)

(2)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company's assets.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to
ensure that the Group’s business activities and decision-
making processes are regulated in a proven and prudent
manner. The Company has compiled with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in the Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017
except where otherwise stated.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group’s business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina

Ms. NA Xin
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cContinued)

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to review
financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group's direction and strategy. Details of the attendance
of the Board of Directors are as follows:

(2)

EEE2W)
s

EXe8FRLRTOREH - Was it
BRhEBERR VARSI AEEZTRAR
REE - EFEGHFESRZAFBOT

17 Mar 2017 5 May 2017 8 Aug 2017 7 Sep 2017 8 Nov 2017 20 Dec 2017

—E—+fF B+t Bt B+t ZE-—tF ZZ—tF

=At++tH FAEH NANH AAB€B +—BANABR +=H=+1+H
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping FH&F5E4E v v/ v v v v
Ms. LI Xia TEL+ v v/ v v v v
Mr. CHEN Yin PRE L v v/ v v v v
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MRELE v v v v/ v v
Ms. LU Haina B g+ v/ v/ v v/ v v/
Ms. NA Xin AT 2L v v/ v v v /

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management'’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The executive Directors meet every two weeks to review
company business pipeline, receivables, and business
unit performance. Senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) meets with Business Unit
Management every week to review project status, and
business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group’'s compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rule.

The Company Secretary has assisted the chairman of the
Board in preparing the agenda for each meeting and the
minutes of such meetings are kept by the Company’'s
company secretary or other duly authorised person.
All minutes are open for inspection by any Director
on reasonable notice. Draft(s) and final version of the
minutes are sent to Directors for comment and records,
respectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence of Directors

All the Directors do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company’'s independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive directors are considered to
be independent.

Directors’ Training

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every new appointed Director should
receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code Provisions (which is
effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the period, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of reading materials relevant to the
Company’'s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, including but not limited to the changes
in respect of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and latest developments in connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Tin Faat, as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee also attended a number of seminars/courses
in relation to continuous professional developments
organized by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants during the year in 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
was in compliance with the aforesaid Code Provisions:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 11 August
2000. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee in
accordance with Code C.3.3 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
Meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Audit Committee is currently comprised
Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Lu Haina and Ms. Na Xin, all of
whom are independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Lam
Tin Faat is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review
with senior management and at least twice a year with
the Company's auditors for the Company's audit findings,
accounting policies and standards, changes of accounting
rules (if any), compliance with listing rules, internal and
audit control, and budget and cash flow forecast.

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results
and audited annual results during the year ended 31
December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The summary of work of the audit committee during the
period is as follows:—

- met with the external auditors, reviewed and
made recommendations for the Board's approval
on the annual, interim and quarterly reports of the
Company;

- reviewed and approved audit fee;

- recommended the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditors, subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems; and

- reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) (4) BitzEE
Details of the attendance of members at Audit Committee EHEZEeKERFEEZ BN -
meeting are as follows:
17 Mar 2017 5 May 2017 8 Aug 2017 8 Nov 2017
—E-tf§ —E-tF —E-tF —E-tF
=AttH HREH NANAH +—ANHR
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MREEE v/ v v v
Ms. LU Haina i3t v v v v
Ms. NA Xin AT 2L v/ v/ v/ v/
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (5) HFMZE=
The Remuneration Committee was established on FgMEEEC R -_ZEETRERATHK

10 May 2005. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management’'s remuneration.

The revised terms of reference of remuneration committee
in accordance with Code B.1.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Remuneration Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should hold at least
one regular meeting in a year. During the year under
review, the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr.
Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the
Remuneration Committee Meeting on 8 November 2017.

The summary of work of the remuneration committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; and

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
Directors’ fees of independent non-executive
Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee is
to assist the Board to deal with matters in relation to
appointment of members of the Board.

The written terms of reference of nomination committee
in accordance with Code A.5.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Nomination Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the Nomination
Committee Meeting on 8 August 2017.

The summary of work of the nomination committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed the existing Board’s structure, size and
composition; and

- reviewed and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board regularly to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and also to
enhance the quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
six directors. Three of the directors are independent
nonexecutive directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. Our current Company Secretary
is Mr. Zhao Zhipeng, appointed on 30 June 2015, is
responsible for facilitating the process of implementing the
Board's decision, as well as communications between the
members of the Board and the management team of the
Company, and advising the Board and its committees on all
governance matters.

The biographical details of Mr. Zhao Zhipeng are set out
on page 45 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE OF CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirms that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
twelve months ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 which reflect true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and the
Group and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other
inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
as the Group's external auditor. The statement by Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities to the shareholders on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 46 to 51 of this
annual report.
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(10) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the

(10) X BETEN <=

BE_T—tHF+-_A=1+—HLFE "
AR A0 AR BRAM (R AN SR B (R AZ B M IR

Auditors to the Group is as follows: HREHE T ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Fees breakdown by accounting firms ZERRSHEFTES
Grant Thornton* B HIE=S Y
Annual audit services FEZERS 820 747
Other professional CPA firms Hth BB ESTTANT
Annual audit services FEZERT 191 174
Total HaEt 1,011 921
& Grant Thornton (including Grant Thornton and Grant * KA S EEA (BN A S F

Thornton Hong Kong Limited, hereinafter referred to as
“Grant Thornton”).

(11) RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control system of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risk rather than eliminating the
risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Management team of the Company has established
the Group’s Internal Control Policies and Guidance for
monitoring the internal control system.

The Board has delegated to the management team of
the Company the implementation of such internal control
systems as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Qualified personnels and individual business unit
heads of the Group maintain and monitor the compliance
of these internal control systems and procedures on an
ongoing basis and report variances to senior management.
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(12) INTERNAL CONTROL

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and senior management on the effectiveness of the internal
control system, the Audit Committee is satisfied that:

o the internal control and accounting systems of the
Group are designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to material assets of the Group are protected,
business risks attributable to the Group are identified
and monitored, material transactions are executed
in accordance with management'’s authorisation and
the accounts are reliable for publication; and

o there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group.

(13) COMMUNICATION WITH

22

SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are
separate resolutions for separate issues proposed at the
general meetings.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors on relevant information on the Group’s business
in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements.

A) General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a
good opportunity for communication between the
shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be
held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting.
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(13) COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT (Continued)

A)

B)

C)

General Meetings (Continued)

The 2018 AGM is scheduled on Thursday, 17 May
2018. A circular containing, among other matters,
further information relating to the 2018 AGM will
be despatched to the shareholders of the Company
together with this report in accordance with the Bye-
Laws, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 58 of the Bye-Laws, any one or
more shareholders of the Company holding as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74 (3) of the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company have the right to put
enquiries to the Board. All such enquiries shall be
in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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(14) ATTENDANCE OF GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and he should invite the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG
Code, independent non-executive Director and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the annual general meeting of the Company was held on
22 May 2017, and all the then Directors had attended the
annual general meeting.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include
answering questions through the general meetings, the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements
and circulars on the Company’s website at http://www.hkjewelry.
net/ and meetings with investors and the Shareholders. News
update of the Group's business development and operation are
also available on the Company's website (http://www.hkjewelry.
net/).

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has formulated and implemented its
guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the
confidentially requirement and fulfil the disclosure obligation. The
guidelines includes, but not limited to, the procedures as follows:

o The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information;

o The Group has stipulated policy on handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure and waiver to the
disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures.

° The Group authorised only the executive Directors and
company secretary for responding to external enquiries
about Group's affairs; and

o Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the website of GEM and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the period.
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Yu Tak International Holdings Limited is principally engaged
in the development, sale and implementation of enterprise
software products and the provision of systems integration
and professional services, design and sales of gold and
jewellery products and investment holding. Its subsidiaries,
which offer a full spectrum of enterprise applications to banks,
financial enterprises and multi-national companies in Hong
Kong, China and Southeast Asia, are leading enterprises in
the industry in terms of technology. By unswervingly adhering
to the philosophy of innovation-driven development and its
goal of development, the Group keeps abreast of time and is
committed to expanding its business, in an effort to maximize
return for the shareholders. Meanwhile, the Group places
emphasis on environment protection and social responsibility,
proactively participates in public welfare activities, and attaches
great importance to safeguarding employees’ rights and
interests to offer them an ideal working environment.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labour Practices
Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group strictly abides by the relevant employment laws in
Hong Kong, and is committed to safeguarding and protecting
employees’ rights and interests. A set of well-established
employment policies covering recruitment, remuneration and
welfare, assessment and promotion is in place, which sets out
various standards and guidelines in respect of employment,
so as to prevent unfair treatment. Employees’ remuneration
shall be determined based on their individual performance,
qualification and experience with reference to the prevailing
market rate.

We value each individual employee as we recognise their
contribution to the success of the Group. Therefore, the Group
offers year-end bonus to the staff based on their individual
performance every year as a token of recognition and reward.
In addition, we will conduct assessment of each employee’s
performance on a regular basis and, where appropriate, offer
them promotion opportunities.

The Group’s management has always been willing to accept
well-intentioned advices and attached great importance to the
communication with employees. The annual dinner and various
festival activities organized by the Group all contributed to
building a healthier employment relationship and a cohesive
work team.
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Occupational Safety

Due to the service and retail nature of our business, our
employees are not subject to material safety hazards during
their work. However, we still attach great importance to our
employees’ health and safety, and have established sound
relevant system in accordance with the labour laws, fire control
regulations and industry practices. In addition to regular fire drill,
we enhanced employees’ capability in coping with incidents and
unexpected disasters, and also organized safety education to
enhance our staff’'s safety awareness. Meanwhile, the Company
has maintained appropriate liability insurance for its directors
and employees to provide coverage to them for risks associated
with the business operation of the Company. The insurance
coverage is reviewed annually.

Development and Training

The Group spares no effort in training its employees, and will
arrange appropriate trainings for all employees ranging from
front-line sales staff to logistics management and technical
personnel, in order to improve their knowledge and skills,
thereby improving the Company’s service quality.

All new employees will receive orientation training upon joining
our Group, which will help them fully understand their duties
and the skills required. Senior employees will act as their tutor
at work to give on-the-spot instructions. In addition, department
heads will coordinate with the human resources department to
develop suitable training programs for employees as required
and based on their assessment of individual employees.

As the management of the Group, the Directors must be
fully aware of their overall responsibilities. The Group strictly
abides by the requirements of code provision A.6.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. In addition to orientation training,
all newly appointed Directors shall participate in the training
programs in relation to continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
period, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading
materials in relation to the Company’s business or Directors’
responsibilities.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the labour law and other relevant
regulations in Hong Kong which strictly prohibits the employment
of people under the age of 18 or forced labour. We also have
formulated explicit internal guidance which requires that during
the recruitment process, the original copies of the identity
certification documents of the job applicants should be verified
before employment. Any job applicants who provide false identity
information will be handed over to the police for follow-up actions.

Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers mainly include software suppliers or
relevant outsourcing suppliers, and their business operation will
not have any adverse impact on the environment and society.
Therefore, we have no guidance on supply chain management
in place. However, we will conduct an internal assessment
of each supplier on a regular basis in order to review our
cooperation with them.

Product Liability

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and has formulated its own internal guidelines to set
quality criteria for various products and services. A dedicated
team has been appointed to take charge of the assessment
work to ensure the quality criteria have been met. The Group
has formulated strict review procedures for its IT software to
prevent any risks to the health and safety of the consumers.
We have also established comprehensive regulations on the
usage of product labels in accordance with relevant laws to
prevent any false or misleading information.

Meanwhile, we have also established a set of sound mechanism
to handle complaints and product recalls. Upon receipt of any
complaint, we will carry out internal investigation immediately
and take follow-up and improvement measures, so as to prevent
similar events from happening again.

Anti-corruption

Although the Group has not formulated any explicit anti-corruption
policies, it has always upheld the principle of integrity and
strictly abided by the relevant regulations in Hong Kong, and is
committed to preventing corruption. A variety of procedures have
been established to ensure prompt follow-up and investigation
upon receipt of any corruption report, and any people involved in
corruption will be handed over to the competent authorities. With
joint efforts by all staff, no incidents of corruption involving any
of our employees were reported so far.
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Contribution to the Society

The Group proactively implements the philosophy of “take
and give” by making positive contributions to the society and
actively participating in public welfare activities. We offer
more job opportunities to local residents by recruiting local
employees. In addition, the Group proactively encourages its
employees to participate in community and charity activities and
advocates charitable concept among the employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emission Reduction

The business of the Group mainly includes development of IT
software and system and doesn’t involve industrial activities
with high pollution levels. As such, neither greenhouse gases
or waste gases nor discharges such as sewage or wastes will
be generated during the ordinary course of business. Therefore,
the Group has no relevant policies in place. However, we will
properly collect and dispose general office wastes in accordance
with the relevant regulations and rules.

Utilisation of Resources

Although the Group is not a resource-consuming enterprise,
it has also taken various measures to facilitate the rational
utilisation of valuable resources. We encourage our employees
to save water and energy. For example, all lights and air
conditioners in the offices and retail stores must be turned off
after close of business in order to avoid waste of electricity. In
addition, in case of water leakage caused by damaged pipes,
we will repair such damaged pipes immediately to reduce
waste of valuable portable water resources.

Meanwhile, we instill such concept to enhance employees’
environmental awareness and encourage them to recycle used
materials such as envelopes and waste paper as much as
possible.

Environment and Natural Resources

Although our business will not have a material impact on
the environment and natural resources, we still abide by
the relevant environmental laws in Hong Kong and we will
take decisive remedial measures once we are aware of any
irregularities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 148.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the “Financial Summary”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 11
respectively of this Annual Report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 55 and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina

Ms. NA Xin
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to Article 84(2), any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(2) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Chong Yu Ping, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 43 to 45.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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ESEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing

Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company

EERFTETBRAERERFTAZR
7 - HERORESPEHEREZERER

I B
RE

RZFE—+F+_A=+—H BREAQRER
FBHEMBEGEO([FHRBEKRD ) E35215R
EFEZELMATE - BBEEBHERZAE
BRI ([BERET]) GEMES LR AI(TGEM L
BB BB 4GB T AR B R fTZ B » K
AEIBERTBTRABRES Z2HBHEALTRAE
AR NMERBEBRZRG - BERGORESFTE
BrESEARWT

RAARESREEICGETEERZHR

Number of ordinary shares held

REEERYE
Percentage of
Held by the issued
Beneficial Held controlled share capital
Name of Director Owner by family corporation Total of the Company
HEAXEERT
EEns BREFA MRKERHE HSEQARRE st RAE DL
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping  H&E¥EE - - 312,606,140 312,606,140 26.30%
(Note 1)
(Hiat1)
Ms. LI Xia FERL - - 312,606,140 312,606,140 26.30%
(Note 1)
(Hzt1)
Mr. CHEN Yin BR&E %t - - 110,303,827 110,303,827 9.28%
(Note 2)
(Hrit2)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

2)

These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited. Sino Eminent
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert Investments Limited
and 75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen
Yihua”), a company incorporated in the PRC which is held as
to approximately 75% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly, Mr.
Chong Yu Ping is deemed to be interested in 312,606,140
shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent
Limited being controlled by Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his
shareholding in Shenzhen Yihua. Ocean Expert Investments
Limited is a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands which is wholly owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is
deemed to be interested in 312,606,140 shares held by Sino
Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being
controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her shareholding in Ocean
Expert Investments Limited and through her acting as the sole
director of Sino Eminent Limited.

These shares were held by Flourish Zone Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chen Yin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company.

FERR

RZF

—tF+_A=+—H BEARFER

o RHERPIFEI6IHRTE 2 T ERRAMA
& TIBRREHAEARARARRZHETRA
hEAREERNORE -

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the
Notes shares held Company
A
BEORT BRITRE
Name of Shareholder RREE/ 2 i3 EEREA Aol
Sino Eminent Limited ERERAA 1 312,606,140 26.30%
RIMEEREEHRNHERAA RIMEERZEHRHERRR 1 312,606,140 26.30%
(Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd)
Ocean Expert Investments Limited BRREBRAR 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Ms. LI Xia FEUT 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HEYEE 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Flourish Zone Limited B ER AR 2 110,303,827 9.28%
Mr. CHEN Yin REL4E 2 110,303,827 9.28%
Confluence Holdings Limited BRI AR AR 3 91,034,166 7.65%
Mr. LIN Feifei AR 2 3 91,034,166 7.65%
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited RIMNTEXRERAA 4 143,233,151 12.05%
Alps Mountain Agent Limited Alps Mountain Agent Limited 4 71,969,151 6.06%
iBusiness Corporation Limited EREEBRAT 4 67,264,000 5.66%
Notes: Htat -
(1) These shares have been disclosed as Directors’ interests held by (1) ZERGEUEIEFERFEZTHRABRERALZ

controlled corporation in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

(2) Flourish Zone Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yin. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to be interested in the 110,303,827
shares interested by Flourish Zone Limited.

(3) Confluence Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands which is held as to 95% by Mr. Lin Feifei.
Accordingly, Mr. Lin Feifei is deemed to be interested in the
91,034,166 shares interested by Confluence Holdings Limited.

(4) CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”) is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meetings of Alps Mountain Agent
Limited (“Alps”) and iBusiness Corporation Limited (“iBusiness”).
Accordingly, CK Hutchison is deemed to be interested in
143,233,151 shares of the Company of which 71,969,151 shares
are held by Alps and 67,264,000 shares are held by iBusiness
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company at 31 December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was approximately 55% of
the Group's total turnover and the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 33% of the Group's turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 49% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 48% of the Group’'s total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that enables the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group’'s continuing connected transactions are mainly
transactions in respect of the sales of gold and jewellery and
purchase of showcases for the brand H< H.K. JEWELRY that
are made with companies in which certain Directors have
interests, such transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under
the GEM Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2015, Golden HK Jewellery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited* (“Golden HK Jewellery”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Master Agreement
I, Master Agreement Il, Master Agreement Il and Master
Agreement IV with Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited*
(“Baidi Jewellery”), Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union
Investment Company Limited* (“Zhong Chuang”), Shenzhen
Didi Jewellery Culture Development Company Limited* (“Didi
Culture”) and Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company
Limited* (“Didi Showcases"”). The aforementioned continuing
connected transactions will expire on 31 December 2018.

On 31 December 2015, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company
Limited* (“Shenzhen Yihua"”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and Golden HK Jewellery entered into the framework
leasing agreement (the “Framework Leasing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Yihua as the lessor has agreed to
lease the office premises owned by Shenzhen Yihua to Golden
HK Jewellery as the lessee for the purpose of Golden HK
Jewellery conducting its daily operation.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING ESRFEBEXRZ 2=

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions x5
Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2017 2016
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms —E—tF —TRE
(a) % B 28 HK$°000 HK$'000
XZHER REME (b) HAFR TER FET
(1) Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company  Sales of gold and Master Agreement | - 217

Limited (“Baidi Jewellery”)
(Note 2)

MNBEEKERRAR([BEKE])
(Hti#2)

(1) Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union
Investment Company Limited
("Zhong Chuang”) (Note 1)
AYTHEIHEREFRAA]
(THell)(hzt1)

jewellery products

HEBEEMAKEER

Sales of gold and
jewellery products

HERSNARBER

(a) 30 December 2015
(b) 1 January 2016 —
31 December 2018
il
(0) ZE—RF+=-RA=1H
b) ZE—"F—-H—HZ
ZE-NFtZA=t—H

Master Agreement || -

(a) 30 December 2015

(b) 1 January 2016 -
31 December 2018

Bl

(@) ZF—RF+=A=1H

b) ZE—R"F—-H—HZ
“Z-\f+=-A=1+—H
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING ESREFEBEXRZ 2=

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2017 2016
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms —E—tF —TRE
(a) 5% B 58 HK$°000 HK$'000
XZHER REME (b) HAFR TER FET
(I Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Culture Purchase of Master Agreement Il - 29
Development Company Limited packaging (a) 30 December 2015
("Didi Culture”) (Note 2) materials for (b) 1 January 2016 -
A mARE L ERERAA the jewellery 31 December 2018
(st D (Bfat2) products Bzl
BERBEMLBE (@ ZFT—AF+=A=1H
Lupe: b) ZE—R"F—-HA—HE
—E-N\F+=ZA=+—H
(IV)  Hangzhou Didi Commercial Purchase of Master Agreement IV 224 124
Showcases Company Limited showcases for the  (a) 30 December 2015
("Didi Showcases") (Note 2) brand (b) 1 January 2016 -
MMEEEEEARRAR(maE  [FIHKJEWELRY 31 December 2018
B 1)(Ha#2) BEHE 4588 agmv
ez EE (@) ZF—RF+=A=1H
b) ZE—R"E—-RA—HZE
—E-\F+-HA=t—H
(V) Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Operating lease Framework Leasing Agreement 2,386 2,252
Limited (“Shenzhen Yihua") (Note charges on (a) 31 December 2015
3) land and building (b) 1 January 2015 -
RIMEEGRESHRNERAFADE IHREFLLEHES 31 December 2017
YIBE ) (fi23) A EXRHERZ

o ~F-EF+-A=t-B
bl =F-FF-A-AZ
—2-—tFt=A=t-A
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Relationship between Connected Parties

Notes:

(1) Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the brother of Ms. Li Xia.
Accordingly, Zhong Chuang is an associate of Ms. Li Xia, and
hence a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

(2) Baidi Jewellery, Didi Culture and Didi Showcases is respectively
owned as to 90%, 100% and 100% by Hangzhou Didi
Investment Joint Stock Company Limited, which in turn is
owned as to 90% by Mr. Lin Di’s father. Therefore, each of
Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi Showcases is an
associate of Mr. Lin Di, and hence a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Lin
Di resigned as an executive Director on 30 October 2015.

(3) Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company
holding approximately 26.30% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2015 and is owned as to
approximately 75% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Mr. Chong Yu Ping
was appointed as an executive Director on 17 February 2016.

Therefore, transactions under Master Agreement (l) to (V)
above constitute Continuing Connected Transactions of this
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The above Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Master Agreement (I) to (IV) and the Framework Leasing
Agreement are subject to various annual cap amounts disclosed
in the Company’'s announcement dated 30 December 2015.
Capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the above announcement unless
specified otherwise.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Company's independent non-executive
Directors who have confirmed that: (i) the terms and conditions
of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions are on
normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the independent shareholders are concerned; (ii) the
respective proposed annual caps for the Continuing Connected
Transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2018 are
fair and reasonable so far as the independent shareholders are
concerned; and (iii) the Continuing Connected Transactions are
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

Opinion of the Auditor

The Company’s Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed
by the Group above in accordance with Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Auditor has reported to the Directors
that the above Continuing Connected Transactions: (1) have
received the approval of the Board; (2) are in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company; (3) have been carried out
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have not exceeded the
relevant annual caps.
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OTHER CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

HttBEEL REBL XS

2017 2016
Name of counterparty Nature of transactions —E-+f Z—IZ—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
REH B XEMHE FET AT
- Excel Technology International  Professional fee received 36,668 29,063
(Hong Kong) Limited ENEEER
("Excel HK") (Note 1) Professional fee paid 12,055 7,812
— SRR ER (B8 AR EREXER
AR[FBEE]) Purchase of complementary 12,014 1,281
(W) hardware and software
BEREFEREMN
Administration expenses 1,440 960
reimbursements (Net paid)
THAXHE (B M)
- Shenzhen Yihua (Note 2) Sales of Gold and Jewellery 105 5

— R BE(ffz2) Products
HEESRUEER

Note:

(1) Excel HK has become an associate since 27 May 2015 and is
ultimately 50% owned by Ms. Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy, a
director of the Company’s subsidiaries.

(2) Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company

holding approximately 26.30% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2015 and is owned as to
approximately 75% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Mr. Chong Yu Ping
was appointed as an executive Director on 17 February 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDENMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is any permitted indemnity provision being force
for the benefit of any directors of the Company (whether made
by the Company or otherwise) or of its associated company (made
by the Company).
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of
independence were received from each of the Company's
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently comprise three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Lu Haina and Ms. Na Xin, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 12 to 24.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 March 2017
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping, also known as Mr. Zhuang
Ruping (Age 51)

Chairman

Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Company, who is responsible
for leading the work of the Board and setting operation direction
and investment strategies for the Company. Mr. Chong has
over 20 years of relevant experience in the jewellery and
investment industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chong
has been appointed as the general manager and executive
Director of a private company, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery
Limited* and from 2011 to present, he is the director and legal
representative of Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Limited, a company
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed
under the section headed "“Substantial Shareholders” in the
Directors’ Report included herein. Mr. Chong was appointed as
an executive Director and as the Chairman of the Company on
17 February 2016.

Ms. LI Xia (Age 44)

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Li is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
is responsible for the corporate planning and business
development of the Company. Ms. Li served in Shanghai
Shenggqiu Investment Development Limited*, and was appointed
as executive vice president with her experience and strength
in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for administration
and human resource management, marketing operations and
brand promotion. With her leadership, the company achieved
a healthy growth. At the same time, Ms. Li also served as
the special-commissioned jewellery operating adviser for Baidi
Jewellery to lead the company to achieve excellent results,
which made her the veteran in the jewellery business. Ms. Li
graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic of the
Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration. Ms. Li has been an Executive Director of the
Group since 3 July 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2015, Ms. Li was the Chairman and as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. And Ms. Li resigned as the Chairman
of the Company on 17 February 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. CHEN Yin (Age 36)

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds and
Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute of
America (“GIA"). Mr. Chen has been as an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Age 42)

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also the sole proprietor of TF Lam &
Company, a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top
Team Secretary Limited. Mr. Lam has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.

Ms. LU Haina (Age 39)

Ms. Lu possesses over 8 years of experience in education in
relation to jewellery design. From 2005 to 2010, Ms. Lu taught at
the school of jewellery of Guangzhou Panyu Polytechnic. Since
2010, Ms. Lu has been teaching at Guangzhou International
Economics College. Ms. Lu graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University
with a bachelor degree in arts and design and is a holder of a
jewellery designer certificate verified by All-China Federation of
Industry & Commerce. Ms. Lu has been an independent Non-
executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. NA Xin (Age 37)

Ms. Na was the chief operating officer of FIITHNEXHREE
#iA PR /2] (Shenzhen Jiuha Cai Jewellery Co., Ltd), a company
specialized in qualified jewellery trading business from 2008
to 2012. She was an assistant to chief executive officer for
Little Sheep North America (Vancouver) Branch (/NB=FEdE3E
CBETE) D2 Al from 2012 to 2013. Ms. Na completed her
Bachelor's degree in English in the School of Humanities and
Social Science of Beijing Jiaotong University (formerly known
as the Northern Jiaotong University) in 2003. Ms. Na has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since
1 December 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng (Age 34)

Authorised Representative, Compliance Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. Zhao was appointed as the authorised representative,
compliance officer and company secretary of the Company on
30 June 2015. Mr. Zhao is currently a registered solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong. He holds the Bachelor degree
of laws (PRC Law) awarded by The East China University of
Political Science and Law. He was awarded the Master of Laws
in Common Law by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2007 and the Juris Doctor degree by the City University of
Hong Kong in 2009 respectively. Further, in 2011, Mr. Zhao
was awarded the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws by the City
University of Hong Kong.

BMYFHITES @)

BT 2+ (375%)

LT ER_BEENFE_T——FELRIMT
NEVGEEMERAT(EMNELAERKER
DEBHAR)NEERE - HENR_T—=F%
= FEENBEFEECRTE) D QRN
e - PLTR_BE=FEmKILRE
AREB(RIBIEARBAE) AL GRI B KL E
T8 - PrtHN-—FB—NFE+-A—BESE
BASEBYIERITES o

SREBEAER

A B S A (345%)
RIERZEZ  ERFTAIRAGHNE

BEEAER -_T-AFNA=THEZER/AEAR
ARERR ERIERAFAWE - BELH
R REER S AR EMEE - REAERBUEA
ERBNZBELTBM(FER)  DHR_FT
T FEBRBPXARBRE LT BREBBR LB -
ER-ZZNFEBFERMARABRFERELS
i - BRR-F——F  HEEEFTBUNASRE
BERBEREE -

2B

“ECFEH PEEARERERAT 45



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

To the members of Yu Tak International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yu
Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to
148, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RS IR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

A key audit matter is identified in our audit as follows:

Determination of the net realisable values of

inventories

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.8,
critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

How the matter was
Key Audit Matter addressed in our audit
As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had inventories
of HK$36,064,000 (2016:
HK$37,994,000).

Our audit procedures to the
determination of net realisable
values of inventories included the
following:

o reviewed and analysed the
Inventories are carried ageing of inventories;
at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. In e
determining net realisable
value, estimates and
judgements are applied by
the management to assess
the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of e
business less the applicable
selling expenses.

tested, onasample
basis, on selling price of
inventories being sold
subsequent to the reporting
date; and

assessed the sufficiency
of allowance where the
estimated net realisable
value is lower than the cost.
We considered this as key

audit matter due to (i) the

significance of inventories

(representing 32% of

total assets (2016: 25%))

and the involvement of

management judgement

and estimation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2017 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RS IR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BRBARETRESMBERAENSE
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED =3€-))
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, MEZEALZTEEBNEZIEDR » HIPREPLSE
we determined those matters that were of most significance in  IEHANEGEMBEHRERNEB;S TIERAETE -
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current  MIBKEEEETEIE - BRIEERSEARTIETTFA
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe BB EFEE @ B EEOEBRT @ B2
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation AWHBENHEEESEERNTREEZREEBBEA
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in  RABHEFHEAFSZMAEARETHRE © &
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter BRI AZEENRE PG L EEE -

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited HE (BB SHMEKAARAT
Certified Public Accountants B ETAD

Level 12 B

28 Hennessy Road T

Wanchai B FFE 285

Hong Kong 1218

19 March 2018 —E-N\FE=A+NAH

Kwok Siu Kwan, Sylvia PEE

Practising Certificate No.: P06616 HEEERI  P06616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERER

Hitt 2 E = %

for the year ended 37 December 2017 42 —F—+F+-_A=4+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
By & T FHT
Revenue WA 5 110,174 104,367
Other income Hiblezs 7 3,896 2,280
Change in inventories FE# (1,930) (5,912)
Purchase of goods HEEm (25,286) (13,656)
Professional fee BEER (12,652) (17,723)
Employee benefits expense S BAIRX 12 (71,176) (85,520)
Depreciation e (424) (2,312)
Impairment loss on property, mE - BB RE
plant and equipment 14 - (2,891)
Other expenses HibBAs (30,993) (22,671)
Finance costs BsER 8 - (176)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MNB ARz W 34 12,359 -
Share of results of an associate [ A NGIE S 16 5,532 (1,651)
Loss before income tax R FEHRATEE 9 (10,500) (45,865)
Income tax expense PSR 10 (371) (390)
Loss for the year FRER (10,871) (46,255)
Other comprehensive income/ ERHEMEEEKE (%)
(expense) for the year
Items that will be reclassified BEEHECEH 2
subsequently to profit or loss: BmkJEE :
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of BEEINEBTBHRERN
financial statements of foreign operations PE 5 Uz (E518) 2,621 (2,351)
Release of exchange reserve upon RHEE BB AR
disposal of a subsidiary FRBRINE 18 (4,055) =
(1,434) (2,351)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ERZHEAEEH (12,305) (48,606)
Loss for the year attributable to: EEERESE :
Owners of the Company YA 2PN (10,387) (42,763)
Non-controlling interests R R (484) (3,492)
(10,871) (46,255)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to: {52 HpX A58 :
Owners of the Company ViN/N Tffﬁﬁ}\ (11,821) (45,247)
Non-controlling interests IR (484) (3,359)
(12,305) (48,606)
Loss per share for loss attributable to AAREEAER
owners of the Company during the year i REE
Basic and diluted ERREE 11 (HK0.87 centsi#&l)  (HK3.60 centsil)

The notes on pages 58 to 148 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

aRE BT IR R 3R

as at 31 December 2017 R=—F—+F+-H=4+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(= T FHETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE LR 14 1,156 913
Interest in an associate R—HBE QR 2 16 7,522 17,494
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEEREE 17 = =
Development costs B AR 18 - =
8,678 18,407
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 36,064 37,994
Amounts due from customers EREFELITERE
for contract work 20 7,707 4,767
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 21 13,507 14,016
Other receivables, deposits EmpElEIE ek
and prepayments TETFRIE 22 20,814 17,072
Cash and bank balances We MIBITFER 23 25,675 24,507
103,767 98,356
Assets classified as held for sale DERFBIERECEE 24 - 33,027
103,767 131,383
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERHE SR 25 1,140 566
Other payables and accrued charges HEmENRIERTEREA 26 21,934 25,311
Amounts due to customers EREFPAELHIERE
for contract work 20 2,217 3,015
Amounts due to directors FERTEERIA 27 20,538 15,046
Tax payable FERHIIR 77 =
45,906 43,938
Liabilities directly associated with HABARELEEE
assets classified as held for sale ERNAE8E 24 - 30,401
45,906 74,339
Net current assets REBEEFE 57,861 57,044
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAERE 66,539 75,451
Net assets EEFE 66,539 75,451
T FFY HEERERERAT 53



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

as at 31 December 2017 R=—ZE—+F+—-H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff5E TFHET FHEIT
EQUITY i #E
Share capital [N 28 118,846 118,846
Reserves B (50,568) (38,747)
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AEERE
the Company 68,278 80,099
Non-controlling interests FER R (1,739) (4,648)
Total equity MR EAREE 66,539 75,451
Li Xia =8 Chong Yu Ping HEF
Director BE Director E2

The notes on pages 58 to 148 are an integral part of these $58EH FE148E MM THEK I ZHEA MTEHE
consolidated financial statements. B —Ehn o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ERBRBER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —

—tFFA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAERAEL
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Capital ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
ke RHEE*  NERRE  ERERE ZitEE BE FERER  RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000  HKS'000
T TR T TEnL T TR Thr  TEn
Balance at 1 January 2016 RIF-E-A-R0ES 118846 220438 1,32 - (214988) 12562 [1,565) 124,057
Acquisition of additional interests in EA-FHEBLANEMER
a subsidiary (note 35) (H3t35) - - - (276) - (276) 276 =
Transactions with owners EEEARS - - - (276) - (276) 276 E
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (42763 42,763) (3492 (46,255)
Other comprehensivelexpenselfincome: £t 2E(Ex% ),/ A
- Exchange (loss)igain on translation of ~ —BE BN EREABRRME
financial statements of (BlB)/ i
foreign operations - - (2,484) - - (2,484) 133 2,351)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ ER2AHX A% - - (2,484 - (42,763) (45,247) (3359 (48,606)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-AETZA=T-AR
and 1 January 2017 “E-tF-A-BNER 118,846 220,438 (1,158) (276) (257,751) 80,099 (4,648) 75,451
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE-HHEAR(KM) - - - - - - 3393 3393
Transactions with owners HEAARS - - - - - - 3,393 3,393
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (10387) (10,387 (484)  (10871)
Other comprehensive income/lexpensel:  Et2ENE/ (%
- Exchange gain on translation of financial ~ — %€ i?\\%ﬂgﬁﬁﬁim
statements of foreign operations &5 = - 2,621 - - 2,621 - 2,621
- Release of exchange reserve upon - HE-BHBLATR
disposal of a subsidiary BRERBE - - (4,055 - - (4,055 - (4,055
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ FM2AR A% - - (1,434) - togen (g2 (484)  (12,305)
Balance at 31 December 2017 REB-tETZA=t-RANER 118846 220,438 (2592) (276) (268,138) 68,278 (1,739) 66,539

*

statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 58 to 148 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

These reserves accounts comprise the Group's deficit of
HK$50,5668,000 (2016: HK$38,747,000) in the consolidated

F58H EF 148 M T It E 47

ZEREBRBRGR A BN RAREE B

#$50,568,000/& T( =& —

75

B —&B 1 o

T tFER

HERREZERERQE

JNEF 38,747,000

B BHRE

55



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEBRETRERXR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By &E FBT FET
Cash flows from operating activities RELLTH2REFRE
Loss before income tax HBRATIEHLATE B (10,500) (45,865)
Adjustments for; HE
Depreciation e 424 2,312
Net loss on disposal/written off of HE / MEME  BEK
property, plant and equipment R FEE = 4
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - BEREEREEE
and equipment - 2,891
Interest expenses FERE - 176
Write-down of inventories to net WRFEZE5R5E
realisable value = 1,312
Interest income F B las (107) (786)
Impairment loss on other receivables Hip W 2 HEESE 10,514 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—TERB ARz e 34 (12,359) -
Reversal of write-down of inventories RO EMOR - (2,117)
Share of results of an associate B —RBERREE (5,532) 1,651
Exchange (gain)/loss PE 3, (Uezs) /518 (2,032) 2,168
Operating loss before working BREECEYRI KEBE
capital changes (19,592) (38,254)
Decrease in inventories FERD 4,489 4,394
(Increase)/Decrease in amounts due from BREFAKITRIIA
customers for contract work (m), md (2,237) 3,576
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables EWE SRR,/ (380) 1,802 (1,350)
Increase in other receivables, deposits HibfEUEIE - e Rk
and prepayments TET R IEE N (21,450) (1,169)
Decrease in trade payables BB SRR (19,658) (2,304)
Increase in other payables and HAth JEAT FIB R TEIR B A
accrued charges 22,383 6,636
Increase in amounts due to customers ENEPEHTEFRIEEMN
for contract work 2,405 187
Cash used in operations REXBHBzRAS (31,858) (28,284)
Interest paid [SANEESS - (1,306)
Income tax paid ERFTEH (294) (1,234)
Net cash used in operating activities AR T BT S FEE (32,152) (30,824)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By & FBT FET
Cash flows from investing activities RERETEH2RERE
Decrease in interest in an associate RN—HEEE AR 2B 15,504 20,906
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEY% - E M&H (615) (773)
Repayment of loans to an investee company M—fHRERREEER 4,480 2,896
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - BFE RRERSETIE
plant and equipment - 7
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HE—RRBARMERAE -
net of cash disposed of EREE RS 34 1,007 -
Interest received EUFIE 107 3,031
Net cash generated from investing activities 18&EEIFTES o F5E 20,483 26,067
Cash flows from financing activities RERETE2RERE
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE - (2,896)
Advances from directors EEBH 5,492 5,494
Net cash generated from financing activities @& & EETESLZ H o FEE 5,492 2,598
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BE&RBELZBY 2R BE (6,177) (2,159)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzReKBREFEY 30,041 33,563
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes EXEH s & 1,811 (1,363)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, A+t —A=+—H2zH&R
represented by cash and bank balances BE£%EY » PRLERBITER 25,675 30,041
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEBYNLHRIN
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances B RRITFR 25,675 24,507
Cash and bank balances attributable to ’“*EF%%{FﬁEZﬁFV{ﬁfE%&
assets classified as held for sale (note 24)  $R/T/F(KIzE24) - 5,534
25,675 30,041
The notes on pages 58 to 148 are an integral part of these H58EH EF148E MM BK It EGE B HRE
consolidated financial statements. H)—EB{n ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

1.

58

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the development, sale and
implementation of enterprise software, provision of
systems integration and professional services, design
and sales of gold and jewellery products and investment
holding. The Group's operations are based in Hong Kong
and the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 19 March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM
Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEHEHER)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
The significant accounting policies that have been RAZESAUBEREIIRAZE
used in the preparation of these consolidated BestEERBMAT - BB EFH
financial statements are summarised below. I REBRERTEEZ|RFENRN
These policies have been consistently applied to ERER - M L REIEETR
all the years presented unless otherwise stated. 7 B 7% 3 5 2E R Ko 3 R & B B 7S =R
The adoption of new and amended HKFRSs and ROFE(NA ) PHIFE3HE -

the impacts on the Group's financial statements,
if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared BT TSR TR & R AN FEE AR B
on the historical cost basis, except for financial WL BEEHEEN SR T AEIRA
instruments classified as available-for-sale which REBEZRYIBIN - sTEEPFMPN
are stated at fair values. The measurement bases AR&ETEER -

are fully described in the accounting policies

below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates EEAE  RERAMBHREREA
and assumptions are used in preparation of the ER @t Est RRE - RS
consolidated financial statements. Although these IR ERESRTEHRRITEZ
estimates are based on management’s best SEEENHEmMEL - HERG
knowledge and judgement of current events and BREAeeARIRNZE Gt - B R
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from SEHE e - S HEBRE R
those estimates. The areas involving a higher AHGRAEEHRRMEBEEATE
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas 2 EIEE A AR o

where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power over the entity, only substantive rights
relating to the entity (held by the Group and
others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2.

FE

2.2

SHTHERBE®)

REZEE

HEVMBRREBARARENE
ARBESFt+-_A=1+—HLZ
IR
MEBRARANEEMZEGZELRE -
HAKREEZ2EB-—FKEBZEHM
ARBEEESATEDOER - HAR
NEBHBEBITEENI M ERR
AR ERBEREGIE - N
MAREREHZEREREHE
B EZZR(AAKEREMT M
A EZECRE EE%R -

BASEESEFELAEESHED
BEMMBEIARZAL  AEEK
%M B DA 2 Wk R S ET AR A
AR o

KEARRMZRS - BHREKRE
RzRHWERERENHERES
MBmERETALE - HEBAR
AHEELEZARBRBERGS
RERREE  HREETSRAE
B AEETRERNR o HERRE
BHREAZEZHBEELERE T H
B BREANSERAZEEEK
_ﬁ ®



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHEHEE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 #HEZEEE)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings).

In the Company’'s statement of financial
position, subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for
sale or included in a disposal group. Cost includes
directly attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the end of the reporting
period. All dividends whether received out of
the investee's pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTBEREEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

In the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised
at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’'s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the associate’s net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). The profit or loss for
the year includes the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for
the year, including any impairment loss on the
investment in associate recognised for the year.
The Group's other comprehensive income for the
year includes its share of the associate’'s other
comprehensive income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate.
Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associate are reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where
the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group's interest in the associate
is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Associates (Continued)

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate
and its carrying amount. In determining the value
in use of the investment, the Group estimates its
share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the
associate, including cash flows arising from the
operations of the associate and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity
method from the date when it ceases to have
significant influence over an associate. The
difference between any proceeds from disposing
of the interest in the associate and the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued, is recognised in the
profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would have been
required if the associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

2.

FE

2.3

=

CFF R

SR EERBE )

VAP AN SR BB 2 N B 2 A FE
REMBINRERSRE - RE2HA
H AEBEETRSAEATEE
BRTMERRIRELIRE -
HRAETR - AEESHERE
TR SRR AW E S E(E
REEERAABEZRKSERLE
RA) R EEEEZHZEZR - &
EREZEREER @ KAEBE GG
HEGcBPmBERAREEZA
RFERREREZRE  BREEE
ERBEL RS RERRELH
ERE SRR -

AEBBEETBYHBERRTESE
ARHENERRK I ERER

HEBE R AR 2 ERMEHKIEA
B IHEREDEE AREREE
ZEZZ8 RN BENER o It
O - REBEHAEER B2 E
RElZHEMEERETERB A
SRAR - BEEERBHEBRE QR
ERRENBEESRAMREE
MR o Bt - A BFEREAR
Hofth 2 Y a5 o RERR 2 W s Sk B 1R
HREEHMEELRBEREND
BEBm  MEBRKLLERER
AR SR amsEE A RaEN
DREBRHE(ERBH D ERE) -

HEERZERARA R 65



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # % — & —

2.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHE#MEe)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 INEHBEE
On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. REESIEK(BIEERNEFER
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a BINEBH 2 HER P REKE
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of HEEBINEERKTB AR 2L
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign B SR EHESIHINEREEE
operation, or loss of significant influence over NRAIZEARTZENNLEE)R » BT
an associate that includes a foreign operation), BMAEBEMNERD R5THE
all of the accumulated exchange differences in HEme s N E AR o LAHE
respect of that operation attributable to the Group BRI EMENY Z5Ee
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange WHBER  BETewEHmNES
differences that have previously been attributed 8BS o
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 Y - BERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost W WE KRB AR 25T
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated ENZREREEBYEE - KAEE
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that WEEEEERGZRYT -
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is ME - BEMERBZITETIREM
provided to write off the cost less their residual =t AT {5 B A HR i 8 £ AR A m H T g4
values over their estimated useful lives, using the BE @ WEGERE @ TRFEN
straight-line method, at the following rates per T
annum:
Leasehold improvements 20 to 33'3% HEWHEEE 20E33"/3%
Computer and office equipment 10 to 50% B N 10£50%
Furniture and fixtures 20 to 25% BRREE 20%E25%
Motor vehicles 25 to 30% VAE 25230%
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods BENFGEER  FHEHFELAFE
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if AFHRES 2R FUR - I
appropriate, at each reporting date. REERERAE -

SELEFE HREBERERAR
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2.

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Development costs

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs
that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(ii) there is an intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group's ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHEHEE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Development costs (Continued) 26 BAEHKAE)
(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible i) WEFEEMBZMASER

asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.

After initial recognition of the development
costs as intangible assets, the intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible
assets are available for use. The following useful
live is applied:

Capitalised development costs 3 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

reporting date.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 2.18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial
assets other than interests in subsidiaries and
associates are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- loans and receivables

- available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, an impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHE#MEe)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Financial assets (Continued) 27 TWMEEE)
(i) Loans and receivables (i) EHR MR
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ERREWRIEI S ERT
financial assets with fixed or determinable SRE - HEFETHAE
payments that are not quoted in an ENRZINTESREE -
active market. Loans and receivables are EBER R EBGRIBEEIZNE
subsequently measured at amortised cost BR A SRR 2 i SE A AR
using the effective interest method, less ERDREEETE - st E#
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is SH AR N BS B 5T N U B A AL 4]
calculated taking into account any discount TEXRE YEOEEE
or premium on acquisition and includes fees BARELZZHA—E1D 2
that are an integral part of the effective EH o

interest rate and transaction cost.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (ii) AR &2 fl B =
Non-derivative financial assets that do not NREVAEMEM S EE
qualify for inclusion in any of the other ERRZITESREE
categories of financial assets are classified DoBEAAHEESRE
as available-for-sale financial assets. E e
All financial assets within this category FIEZER Y CEER%
are subsequently measured at fair value. BEAREBEE - 2AE
Gain or loss arising from a change in the BB FTEL 2 W EIE
fair value excluding any dividend and (T BEFEEMRE R E
interest income is recognised in other wm) RE®EE ZREE
comprehensive income and accumulated BOR T BUR) R AIME IR
separately in the investment revaluation EER - REMEEK
reserve in equity, except for impairment WHER  WRERAZIRE
losses (see the policy below) and foreign BEHEEBE IR  BEEX
exchange gains and losses on monetary S RVE EWREEER 2 BR
assets, until the financial asset is IE - bR - BEt ks EE
derecognised, at which time the cumulative BEmENMOEZER ° A
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to BAEBRFEETEZFER
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the BESRPER

effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

72

(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the
reporting date. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that
result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

It becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; and

A significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # = —

2.

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2.

—tFFA=F—HIFE

2.7

EHREBME )

TREEE)

DEEEZRE(E)
EHRAMZERE - BRNUATA

Nt EMERRERE

(i) R AR 2 A E

A 2B R R R R 3K
AR 2 & 3R MR IA
BRERR - BRI ERERZ
ZEMEERMERENER
B R A R (B & R e R B AT
HZBBENE)BRR 2 M5
ARBEERE(TEEH R
EEZAREEER)RE
ZERETR o AR ERE
BEHFERBERTER

ﬁ” LR EEE S BER
A 25
& ﬁ@wmﬁfﬁ1§§§$2$1¢ 9
% - A|FEELIRTER IR
BEEE ERBELBREE
H TEERemEERT
EBBRERREL RALRE
T BESHRCR - BOIS RN
oL HREBRR KT

o
=)
e °

E:“r\‘

/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEHEHER)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Financial assets (Continued) 27 STREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) BREEHE(E)

Available-for-sale financial assets carried at
fair value

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss
as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the
asset’'s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
and stated at fair value are not recognised
in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. The amount of the
impairment losses is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs and are not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at cost (Continued)

Impairment losses of financial assets other
than trade and other receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, are written off
against the corresponding assets directly.
Where the recovery of trade and other
receivables is considered doubtful but not
remote, the impairment losses for doubtful
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery of trade and other receivables
isremote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade and
other receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account in respect of
that receivables are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of an annual period, or in a subsequent
period, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and are determined using the
first in, first out method. Cost, which comprises
all costs of purchase and, where applicable, other
costs that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges and
amounts due to directors.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit of loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges and amounts due to directors

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTBEREEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within other payables and
accrued charges. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(if)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Provisions 2.13 &1fE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Non-current assets, or disposal groups

held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising
assets and liabilities, that are highly probable to
be recovered principally through sale rather than
through continuing use, are classified as held for
sale. Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the assets, or components of a disposal
group, are remeasured in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter generally
the assets, or disposal group, are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal
group first is allocated to goodwill, and then to
remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis,
except that no loss is allocated to inventories,
financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee
benefit assets, investment property or biological
assets, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies.
Impairment losses on initial classification as
held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss. Gains are not recognised in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as
held for sale are not depreciated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods, rendering of services and the use by
others of the Group's assets yielding interest and
franchise income. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Jewellery Products

Sales of gold and jewellery products are
recognised upon transfer of the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the customer. This
is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.

Franchise income is recognised on an accrual
basis over the terms of the relevant franchise
agreements.

IT Products and Services

In circumstances where the contract price can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to the elements
of resale of hardware and software products,
sales of software licences and development of
customised software, revenue is recognised as
described below:

(a) Revenue from resale of complementary
hardware and software products is
recognised when the goods are delivered
and title has been passed;

(b) Revenue from sales of software licences is
recognised upon delivery of the software
products to the customer when there are
no post-delivery obligations;

(c) Revenue from the development of
customised software is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the
customisation work (including post-delivery
service support) at the end of the reporting
period, as measured by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage
of total services to be performed in relation
to the design and prescribed services as
agreed with customers to be rendered in
different phases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # % — & —

2.

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

IT Products and Services (Continued)

Where the contract price cannot be allocated into
individual elements of the sales of enterprise
software products and custom development,
revenue from sales of enterprise software
products and custom development is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
sales of enterprise software products and custom
development (including post-delivery service
support) at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by reference to the costs incurred to
date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction.

Maintenance service income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant maintenance service contracts. Where
maintenance service income is not separately
invoiced, it is unbundled from licence fees and
deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant maintenance
service contracts.

Systems integration income and professional
services income are recognised when the services
are provided.

Others

Consultancy and management fee income in
respect of technical support, consultancy services
and management services are recognised in the
period when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on an accrued basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHE#MEe)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Contract for services 2.17 BRBEH
Costs of rendering of services comprise labour RERB KA EIRERTS E
and other costs of personnel directly engaged in EAZSTRANEMAERKAKR
providing the services and attributable overheads. AR -
Revenue from the rendering of services is %,%1 BREZWMAZR G TIADL
recognised based on the percentage of completion R WU ARTE LS 2R RiE
of the transaction, provided that the revenue, BT 2 (M ET AR ERER] 5T =E o
the costs incurred and the estimated costs ABHWASHBRELRTIAD L
to completion can be measured reliably. The 1EEFAHIFE2.16 ©

accounting policy for contract revenue and further
details on the percentage of completion are set
out in note 2.16.

When it is probable that total contract costs will EANBKATEERRNE H B
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss A BIFEHIEERNERARE -

is recognised as an expense immediately.

Contract for services in progress at the reporting REMABETP 2 REEDIZE
date are recorded in the consolidated statement A RS F BB DN B R R i R E R R
of financial position at the net amount of costs EENEERE S BERGE KK
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised MERNEY A ERELEL TIER
losses and progress billings, and are presented E|(BE)NENEZFEHNIRER
s “Amounts due from customers for contract H|(AE) BENMASNEERERS
work” (an asset) or “Amounts due to customers SR 2 HRERE ISR R R AT FER
for contract work” (a liability). Progress billings ZBEERIN|ET -

not yet paid by customers are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
“Trade receivables”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment
testing:

° Development costs;
o Property, plant and equipment; and
° The Company’s interests in subsidiaries

They are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset’'s carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

86 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FTESTHRBE®)

218 ¥FEMEERE

THEERETTRERH

. R
. ME - -BERERE: &
. NIV N PN £

BERAPRBR AW B REE
RPAETTREAR -

WEEBRDIZEERTEBAEA
WElEBz =58 AEERRHF
X o ANEERARBRIAZ AR
EERLEXAEEREERSE
tE - HAEREER - EFERE
RenERAMATRRFRER
RE - ARBRBEFEHISHEERE
REBEERARRZFE

SFHERETNS @ WAELERER
AZBERBMBINEMEE -
HualmoleBANRA B EL RS
RARNRNEEERA (AR eELSE
f)ERE - Bt - B EEMER#E
TTRENR - ZEMOARRSE
HEBARIR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEEHBE#®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets 218 FLWMEERME (L)
(Continued)
Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating KREERBEESITSAREZENE
units is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash- ERIA f7 BE RS FE B E
generating unit, except that the carrying value of B EE)II >  MIRESELEN
an asset will not be reduced below its individual BRZBEBBIZLNEZREE
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if EBNZEEMR -

determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in EEFBEEE TSN E %R &
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, B ZREMEE - MWAREBEE
an impairment loss is reversed if there has Er W E &% 2 Gt HIR A I E
been a favourable change in the estimates used B REEEE T ARE - BE[E
to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount NS @AM EATERRE - I
and only to the extent that the asset's carrying sHETEEEESE ZBEEE -

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim R BRI s B R 2R E AR
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed TerEHEBAMERLD - #FEEPH
in a subsequent period. This is the case even M T BEE &R HRE
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been It B B 1 AR RE SR B 1B Sk T R R )
recognised had the impairment been assessed BB T eREREEE -

only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC, Malaysia and Singapore are
required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEHEHER)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Borrowing costs 220 HERHZA

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHEHEE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 221 FiSBizgsAEE)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are BNEAR BB E R IEa EEE
presented in net if, and only if: UTNERATAGFEET
(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right (a) NEBEKOER RSB ITH A
to set off the recognised amounts; and U B R REE 0 &
(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or (b) BELRFBEELE  HF
to realise the asset and settle the liability BEREEREBTAE

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and AEBEEATER TG AFEE

deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if: EYRERIEEE MREHIBAE:

(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to (a) FZEBKEERFRNITEY
set off current tax assets against current LA BN A% T8 & = B BN HA Y
tax liabilities; and HEEHHE &

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred (b) IEEFHIREERELCHRIEE
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied BHERE—RREBER A TE
by the same taxation authority on either: fA—IBE Z TSR AR -
(i) the same taxable entity; or (i) F—ERRER ; 3k
(i) different taxable entities which (i) BEERSARKXEBME

intend either to settle current tax (M B BA £ A 8 HR A
liabilities and assets on a net basis, A 1 4507 o M B KRB
or to realise the assets and settle FIRELERIBEENE
the liabilities simultaneously, in each E)NFHEALELE
future period in which significant BVERi B B (E A
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or kAR EIREE R
assets are expected to be settled or BRABNTRERS
recovered. T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of
information technology services and
sales of products, including enterprise
software products, systems integration and
professional services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

4

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 EBEEA

RHSEARBRRME - A
TR - AT AL AR AEA

2.23 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to

the Group if: SEEREH -
(a)  the party is a person, or a close member of (a) (WEALTER  BIAL

HEA LT ZAHKEX S R
REE AR -

that person’s family and if that person:

2 ) 3k HL R 2 Il A 5=

(i) has control or joint control over the (i)

Group; E
(ii) has significant influence over the (ii) HAEBEBEEATE
Group; or -
(i) is a member of the key management (i) AAEBSHAEEFG
personnel of the Group or of a RAETEETEHEN
parent of the Group. 8 o
(b)  the party is an entity and if any of the (b)  HFFE ARG - B

following conditions applies: FREHEASE G

(i) the entity and the Group are (i) ZEREAEEBR
members of the same group. —SKEZKERA] °
(i) one entity is an associate or joint (ii) —ERLES—EEZ
venture of the other entity (or e NRINE EDE
an associate or joint venture of a (HEZ—EBRBAEKE
member of a group of which the RAIZEBETKE
other entity is a member). RElZEERARNE
EEE) o
(il the entity and the Group are joint (i) ZERBEAEENHAR
ventures of the same third party. R—F=Hza8%
% o
(ivy  one entity is a joint venture of a (ivi —EBEBAF-E®

third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # = —

2.

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3

HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group's
operations and effective for the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2017:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosure
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. A reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances of liabilities arising from financing
activities is set out in note 36. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group
has not disclosed comparative information for the prior
year. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 36, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021

& Effective date not yet determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the
first period beginning on or after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group's
accounting policies is provided below. Other new and
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. It makes major
changes to the previous guidance on the classification
and measurement of financial assets and introduces
an “expected credit loss” model for the impairment of
financial assets.

HKFRS 9 also contains new requirements on the
application of hedge accounting. The new requirements
look to align hedge accounting more closely with
entities’ risk management activities by increasing the
eligibility of both hedged items and hedging instruments
and introducing a more principles-based approach to
assessing hedge effectiveness.

The directors have identified the following areas that
are expected to be most impacted by the application of
HKFRS 9:

° the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets. The Group holds most financial
assets to hold and collect the associated cash
flows and is currently assessing the underlying
types of cash flows to classify financial assets
correctly. The directors expect a number of
available-for-sale (“AFS"”) investments are likely
to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss as the cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

o the impairment of financial assets applying
the expected credit loss model. For trade
receivables, the Group applies a simplified model
of recognising lifetime expected credit losses as
these items do not have a significant financing
components.

o the measurement of equity investments at cost
less impairment. All such investments will instead
be measured at fair value with changes in fair
value presented either in profit or loss or in other
comprehensive income. To present changes in
other comprehensive income requires making
an irrevocable designation on initial recognition
or at the date of transition to HKFRS 9.This
will affect the Group's investment in unlisted
equity securities (see note 17) of which the
Group intends to hold beyond 1 January 2018.
Currently, the Group is not intending to elect to
present changes in the equity investment in other
comprehensive income but will account for its
equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 and the related clarification to HKFRS 15
(hereinafter referred to as "HKFRS 15") presents new
requirements for the recognition of revenue, replacing
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”,
and several revenue-related Interpretations. HKFRS 15
establishes a single comprehensive model that applies
to contracts with customers and two approaches to
recognising revenue; at a point in time or overtime. The
model features a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Based on the assessment
completed to date, the Group has identified the following
areas which are expected to be affected:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 2.16. Currently, revenue arising from provision of
services is recognized over time, whereas revenue from
sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when customer
obtains control of the promised goods or services in
the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which
control of the promised goods or services is regarded as
being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance, as the entity performs;

(ii) When the entity’'s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced;

(iii) When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when transfer of control occurs. The Group
has assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely
to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

3.

100

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 and three
related Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 2.12, currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e.
at the commencement date of the lease, the lessee
will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee would recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R R

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases of land and buildings which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed
in note 31, as at 31 December 2017, the Group's
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to HK$7,950,000 for land and
buildings, the majority of which is payable between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date. Some of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of
new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the
Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after
the date of initial application. If the practical expedient
is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its
decisions about which existing contracts are, or contain,
leases, using the new definition. Depending on whether
the Group elects to adopt HKFRS 16 retrospectively or
follow a modified retrospective method of recognising a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at the date of initial application, the Group may or
may not need to restate comparative information for any
changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

4.

102

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”. The carrying amounts of long lived assets
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts.

These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
cost of disposal because quoted market prices for the
Group’s assets are not readily available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. EEgiastRHE =)

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the assets are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant estimation relating
to the level of sales volume, selling prices and the
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that
is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, selling
prices and the amount of operating costs.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was HK$1,156,000 (2016:
HK$913,000) (note 14).

Impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of trade and other receivables. A
considerable amount of estimation and judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including their current creditworthiness,
past collection history, financial condition and likelihood
of collection. If the financial conditions of these parties
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance will be
required. Following the identification of the doubtful
debts, the Group's responsible personnel discusses
with the relevant counterparties and reports to the
management on the recoverability, impairment loss will
be made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables was HK$34,321,000 (2016:
HK$31,088,000). Details of trade receivables and other
receivables are disclosed in note 21 and 22 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # = —

4.

104

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories of jewellery products
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle.

Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of inventories was HK$36,064,000 (2016:
HK$37,994,000) (note 19).

REVENUE

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1
to these consolidated financial statements. The Group's
revenue recognised during the year is as follows:
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WA

AEBEZ T BEBEREWHRERME 1T
B - AREFAERZBADT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE&T T

Sales of gold and jewellery products T MHKBEEMEE 20,350 19,011
Franchise income SRR T ON 647 461
Enterprise software products ESGER 26,948 39,799
Systems integration REER 12,631 6,386
Professional services FERS 49,598 38,710
110,174 104,367
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B ISR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 &i%F —E—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the Group's
two products and service lines as operating segments as
further described in note 2.22.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results.

7 ERE

B2 22 2 — Fiit - AARNITE
E(NEBLERRE) DRI LA EEM
BERQRREEREACEDE

REDBIRBEAED I 2BER
T*&T’Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ RTE °

2017
—E—tF
Jewellery IT Products
Products and Services Total
B
KEER ERREE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET TET
Revenue — From external customers WA —RBE IR P 20,997 89,177 110,174
Reportable segment revenue A2H 5 HBWA 20,997 89,177 110,174
Reportable segment (loss)/profit before BT EH AT 2R D
income tax (B8),/&5F (12,555) 2,055 (10,500)
Interest income LBz 4 103 107
Depreciation e (330) (94) (424)
Impairment loss on other receivables Hth UGB R BB - (10,514) (10,514)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBRR 2 s - 12,359 12,359
Share of results of an associate i —EEE DR EE - 5,532 5,532
Reportable segment assets AE2H/RIPEE 275,620 61,779 337,399
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRENBZIERBEE
(other than financial instruments) (&I AR
during the year 443 172 615

Reportable segment liabilities 2R BEE

28,314 242,546 270,860

TEFFR HEERZERARAT 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HER 2
2016
ZE-RF
Jewellery T Products
Products and Services Total
BN
KEEM EmERB fBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FHET
Revenue - From external customers WA —RBEINEP 19,472 84,895 104,367
Reportable segment revenue A2H5HBWA 19,472 84,895 104,367
Reportable segment loss MNBRFAEHATT 2R HEHE
before income tax (13,974) (31,891) (45,865)
Interest income F Bz 3 783 786
Depreciation e (1,386) (926) (2,312)
Net loss on disposal/written off of HE/MEWE - BEK
property, plant and equipment [ FEE - (4) (4)
Finance costs B%ER - (176) (176)
Write-down of inventories to net WRFEZ 25 FE
realisable value (1,312) - (1,312)
Impairment loss on property, plant mE - BEREEOREBSE
and equipment (1,657) (1,234) (2,891)
Reversal of write-down of inventories B BT EMOR 2,117 = 2,117
Share of results of an associate FElE—HE N R EE - (1,651) (1,651)
Reportable segment assets AERSHEE 279,086 62,631 341,717
Additions to non-current segment assets FRARENBZIERBEE
(other than financial instruments) (BT AR
during the year 150 623 773
Reportable segment liabilities TEHIHEE 22,415 246,477 268,892
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as

DEER (&)
AEEELH 2T @EREA BT
WA AEBEEHHEE Y UK

presented in the consolidated financial statements are as N
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Reportable segment assets AI2|mHPEE 337,399 341,717
Assets classified as held for sale (note 24) PDEABIEHE 2 EE(H:H24) - 33,027
Eliminated upon consolidation “RE ABREE 3 (224,954) (224,954)
Group assets rEBMZEE 112,445 149,790
Reportable segment liabilities AEFoEaE 270,860 268,892
Liabilities directly associated with assets ~ HEDMEAFEHELESEE
classified as held for sale (note 24) Rz B & (FisE24) - 30,401
Eliminated upon consolidation RE AR E (224,954) (224,954)
Group liabilities AEBEZEE 45,906 74,339

AEEZREINBEFPBAREIFREDE
E(ERTARINTIZTIIBEE D :

The Group's revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are
divided into the following geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REMBEE ZWA I RBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF ZB—+tHF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FH T THEIT
Hong Kong BB 4,612 6,517 7,524 17,507
PRC and Taiwan RE N A E 96,455 88,520 1,128 876
South East Asia HEan 9,107 9,330 26 24
110,174 104,367 8,678 18,407
ST LEFR HEERERERAR 107
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6.

108

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset in case of property, plant and equipment and
location of operation in case of interest in an associate
and development costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, HK$36,668,000
or 33% of the Group's revenue depended on a single
customer in the IT Products and Services segment (2016:
HK$29,063,000 or 28%).

DEER(#)

BEFIEME Y 58 2R IE IR ARG
KR MAEERZWETE - IEHBE
EZWEDENERREEE 2 BRME
HMERME  BERRENS) ARES
44 FTTE St (S AR A4 1 RO RE 25 R BB AR
ATE)E °

REE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEBW AT 236,668,000/ T K
BRKEEAREERRREDE 2 E
—®BPF(ZZE—/XF :29,063,000/8 7T 3
28%) °

OTHER INCOME 7. HtWzs
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income F B Es 107 786
Consultancy and management fee income  EAf & & I8 & a6 360 843

Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERE&HE

plant and equipment ZFEE - (4)
Net foreign exchange gain bE 5 F W e 2,443 -
Others HAh 986 655
3,896 2,280

FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEHR
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHATT
Interest charges on other borrowings HEMER e = 176
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e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

9.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/

9. HIKRFMEHRABE

MEMEHAEBRE IR GtA):

(crediting):
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FETT
Operating lease changes on land and buildings BT REFZ
KEHEZE) 5,625 5,916
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense, BHRAERIHFEERAN
including: BiE 27,216 19,568
— Write-down of inventories to —FEMBZERAIZE
net realisable value F1E - 1,312
— Reversal of write-down of inventories (note i) — B B 7 &R (=% - (2,117)
Cost of services rendered (note ii) R AR A A A (Bt =i 67,651 84,474
Impairment loss on other receivables HAb FEU IR R E B8 10,514 <
Depreciation e 424 2,312
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BERZREZ
and equipment BEEE - 2,891
Net loss on disposal/written off of property, HE MWEDE BER
plant and equipment Btz FEE = 4
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss P& 5% (e ) B8 (2,443) 739
Auditor's remuneration ZEET BN < 1,011 921

Notes: PR -

(i) As at 31 December 2016, the reversal of write-down of (i) RZZE—R"F+-—A=+—8 ' TEM
inventories arose from improved market prices. B TR TISER AR

(ii) Cost of services rendered included staff costs of (ii) R REK A B IE B T 455,000,000

HK$55,000,000 (2016: HK$66,750,000), which is also
included in employee benefits expense (note 12).

#EIT(ZZ—/X% : 66,750,000 7T) -

ZEEITAEEEFAZ (MFE12) -
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FAIEHMAx

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Current tax — Overseas BNVERRE I8 — /5
Current year KEE 77 390
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERETR 294 -
Total income tax expense FRiSfif S %8 371 390

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the
Group had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, the subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

110 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss

10.

—tFFA=+—HIFE

FREHRA(#)

HERREARERX R BRETY

at applicable tax rates: B :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax kRS HiRTEE (10,500) (45,865)
Tax on loss before income tax, calculated ERBB R AERERNE A
at the rates applicable to profits or BAHEE R ESE 2
losses concerned in the tax jurisdiction HERFAEHAEE 2 518 (3,857) (10,714)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AS 2 HIBTE 4,989 4,228
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBWAZ BIETE (3,350) (726)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised ARERE B EZE 2 HiBTE 2 5
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEBRHETE 3,147 7,814
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 1B R ARERTEE B (854) (217)
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBIR 294 -
Income tax expense FTis RS 371 390
R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H  AEEBA

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$97,119,000 (2016:
HK$88,447,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses do not expire under current

AR IEEE£97,119,0008 L (- T —

JNEE 188,447,000 7T ) A HE

- FAEE

RIRFERBUINA o 1t F IR IR AR AR IR B

legislation except losses of approximately HK$52,875,000 %&ﬁT\%@ﬁ i "ﬁ%TE%@5?'Ei75'2005%
(2016: HK$42,743,000) which will be expired as follows: TL(=F—7 % : 42,743,000 L) R T
HIEAR E I

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T T

Year of expiry: [EmEH
2017 —E—tF = 2,608
2018 —ET-N\F 7,139 6,663
2019 —NE 6,855 6,398
2020 —E-FF 6,413 5,986
2021 =T 22,415 21,088
2022 —E__fF 10,053 =
52,875 42,743
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11.

12.

112

LOSS PER SHARE 11.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$10,387,000 (2016: HK$42,763,000) and
the weighted average number of 1,188,460,000 ordinary
shares (2016: 1,188,460,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

BREE

EREXRRBEBEDZARARES A
JE{HE54810,387,000/8 TT( =& — /N F ¢
42,763,000/ 7T ) X 1,188,460,0000% & i
A% (= Z—7<4F 1 1,188,460,000 0% & @ A% )
ZFARBEEBITEBRRMD 2 NEFHHE
FTE o

HREE-_T—tFR-_F-—R"F+=-HA
=t HALEFERAYTEDRTELENEE
ZEBE - MEREEERASRERE
A -

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 12. EERFMZ(BEEEFM)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T T
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - FeLEMEF 60,095 75,486
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRE KA — FEEH T2 11,081 10,034
71,176 85,520
Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMREEESFMAL

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS'’ 2 %
EMOLUMENTS
13.1 Directors’ emoluments 13.1 EEH
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to EEHFMORBIBEGEM LA -

the GEM Listing Rules, section 383 (1) of the EENBEMIEISINERL AT (H
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of BRESNRER)ROE2HBHER
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about T

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Other emoluments

Hit# &
Contributions
Salaries to defined
Directors’ and  contribution
fees  allowances plan Total
ERMHR
ESe  HERER SRR L]
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2 TERT TEx TER TEx
2017 —E-t%
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Chong Yu Ping HEFEE - 600 18 618
Ms. Li Xia Ext (b) - 944 85 1,029
Mr. Chen Yin BE%E - 532 18 550
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTEE:
directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat WRESE 180 - - 180
Ms. Lu Haina 3t e 120 = = 120
Ms. Na Xin i lipe e 120 - - 120
420 2,076 121 2,617
TELEFR HERARERERAR 113
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e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMREBRESHFIMA L
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ k3 16
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 13.1 ESHM(E)
Other emoluments
Efoiie
Contributions
Salaries to defined
Directors’ and contribution
fees allowances plan Total
EREHR
B HeREW SR e
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fitsk FAT T FAT THET
2016 ZE-5E
Executive directors: HITES.
Mr. Chong Yu Ping HERETEE (a) - 450 18 468
Ms. Li Xia Y (b) - 856 87 942
Mr. Chen Yin BEfE - 530 18 548
Independent non-executive BV EHITES:
directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat MRELE 180 - - 180
Ms. Lu Haina (3t e 120 = = 120
Ms. Na Xin Bt 120 = = 120
420 1,835 123 2,378
Notes: PR -
(a) Mr. Chong Yu Ping was appointed as an (a) HETEER_ZT—-—XRF_A

114

executive director of the Company on 17

February 2016.

(b) Ms. Li Xia is also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed

above include those for services rendered by her

as the Chief Executive Officer.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RAR I

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #i2 —E—+F+_A=+—HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMRABESHTMA L
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS'’ 25 Mz
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 13.1 ESZHM(E)
There were no arrangements under which BE T +HFR-_ZT—RF+=
a director waived or agreed to waive any A=1+—"BLTFE  WESEEHE
remuneration during the years ended 31 oA BN EE AN 2 T -

December 2017 and 2016.

13.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments 13.2 AERESHMA L 25 M
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FRN - AEERERSTFMHMALE
highest in the Group for the year included three B=2(ZZE—RF:=R)EE -
(2016: three) directors whose emoluments are EFMBEE DT R - FR
reflected in the analysis presented above. The BRTITMEZ(ZE—XREFE: WB)HD
emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) HMA T Z2HMOT ¢

individuals during the year are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Salaries and allowances Fre KoERL 660 1,015
Contributions to defined contribution plan  FEFEH T2 27 36
687 1,051
The emoluments fell within the following band: HENNT AT & E -

Number of individuals

BTA#™
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Emolument band: NS E -
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 B ILE 1,000,000 7T 2 2
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y¥ - BERZ®E
EQUIPMENT
Computer
Leasehold  and office Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
ERRBAZE
HENEEE #fEF FAREE RE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TR TR TR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-xE-f-H
Cost XA 2,846 27,238 6,465 766 37,315
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERRESE
impairment losses (2,819) (24,283) (3,115) (536) (30,753
Net book amount EHFE 27 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
Year ended 31 December 2016 B2-E-~E+-A=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 27 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
Exchange differences ELER - (83) (83) 4 (162)
Additions "E - 423 123 227 773
Disposals/written off e /M - 0] - (18) (19)
Depreciation bk (27) (998) [1,115) (172) 2,312)
Impairment loss recognised BHRRESR - (1,007) 1,680) (204) (2,891)
Reclassified to assets classified ENNBENBARENENEE
as held for sale - (1,036) 2) = (1,038)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 2 253 593 67 913
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-RE+=A=+-AK
1 January 2017 “E-t¥-B-H
Cost WA 1,785 13,066 6,176 769 21,796
Accumulated depreciation and RAMERAESR
impairment losses (1,785) (12,813) (5,583) (702) (20,883)
Net book amount REFE - 253 593 67 913
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ-_8-tE+-A=1-R
LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 253 593 67 913
Exchange differences BEHER - 15 33 4 52
Additions RE 96 96 423 - 615
Depreciation ik (28) (102) (271) (23) (424)
Closing net book amount EXREFE 68 262 778 48 1,156
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t&+-A=1-H
Cost X7 2,024 12,726 7,033 830 22,613
Accumulated depreciation and RAMERBERR
impairment losses (1,956) (12,464) (6,255) (782) (21,457)
Net book amount REFE 68 262 778 48 1,156
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R

14.

BB BwRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Impairment loss

No impairment loss was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
carried out impairment review of its property, plant and
equipment, having regard to the market conditions of the
Group’s business.

Under Jewellery Products segment, the management
regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable cash-generating units (“CGU 1”). Under
IT Products and Services segment, as a result of the
unfavourable performance of & BB F R AR A A
and BN ERER (N AR AR, indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, of which the management
regards these two subsidiaries as CGU 2 and CGU 3
individually. Property, plant and equipment is allocated to
the Group’s CGUs identified.

For the purpose of impairment test, the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs have been determined on the
basis of value-in-use calculations, which use cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
approved by management for the remaining non-
cancellable lease term of the respective retails stores of
CGU 1 and the next five years of CGU 2 and CGU 3 with
the residual period using zero growth rate. The pre-tax
discount rates used for the Group’'s CGU 1, CGU 2 and
CGU 3 were 16.70/0, 17.9% and 17.9%.

Based on the assessment, an impairment loss of
HK$2,891,000 was recognised in the profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and the respective
recoverable amount of aforesaid CGUs to which the
impaired property, plant and equipment belong to was
zero.

14.

—tFFA=+—HIFE

ME - BERRE®)
BIEEE
BE_T—tFT-A=1T—HLEFEW

EERBEEE -

BHE_Z-—R"F+_A=+—HILFE -
AEEHEYE - BERREBEETRER
A BEREEEIAKBERBHAS RO
AR ©

ERBEEMIBT EREREENT
%F‘EJmﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬂﬁ—l%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
((REeELEM1]) - Z—EﬁﬂﬂﬂiFuu&H&
BoET - AREBRGCRIDERA
,u\/l,%/\?ﬁﬂ&(fm)l‘l)Eﬁﬂﬂﬂ(ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’\]
WEE2EMNBLR)RRRMER - E12
EERMELMEAMBARAREELSE
LLZ&fEiEE E(I3 ° W% - WFE MR
PEREASEDERNRSEL B -

EENRMNE  REeEEEMAATKE
SRNDEANTAEESEEE - BMEAR
EEEMRBCEAEMIANNSTERHE
TR BEHBE O FRARIR S EEE M2
MECEALABNIERRATNFH(RT
FHR(E A THE R K ) Fritt fe ) ol HA BT B 7R
BhERNRESRENET - AEEHR S
EEBEU  ReELBM2RREELE
U3FTABAITIRE R16.7% ~ 17.9% K&
17.9% o
BEZTE  BE_T—X"F+-A=+
—BULFE BEBEZEPERREESE
zsmom%ﬁ MEBEDE  BE X
RBFMEN FMIRSEEBMS A MUK
@@%ﬁgo
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15.

118

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2017and 2016 are as follows:

15. RINB AR 2=

RZE—+FR_TE—RF+-_A=+—

H FE2WBARZFHFBEET :

Particulars of Percentage
issued and paid of ownership
Place/country of Place of up capital/ interest held by
Name of company incorporation operation registered capital the Company  Principal activities
ERTRAERE/ RARFEAE
WEARZE AMALRY/ AR EE4E ERERGEE ERGECEAL TEEH
Excel (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands* ~ Hong Kong 5,000 shares of 100%*  Investment holding
USS$1 each (2016: 100%°)
ZERIES B 5,000 5 REE 100%*  RERR
1R R (Z5—7EF 1 100%*)
Excel Consulting and Solutions Malaysia* Malaysia 100,000 shares of 100%  Development of computer
Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian Ringgit (2016: 100%) software and provision
("MYR") 1 each of sale and marketing
services
SRAR SRED 100,000R B HREE 100% REERFHREREE
SREDB(SE])  (ZB-"E:100%)  RiGHEERE
12k
Excel Global IT Services (HK) Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  In the progress of
(2016: 100%) deregistration
SRR (ER)BRAT B B 10,0007 100%  RERTHRES
(22— 100%)
Excelink Technology Pte Ltd. Singapore* Singapore Singapore Dollar 100%  Development of computer
("S$") 893,022 (2016: 100%) software and provision
of sale and marketing
services
g AR HRT(MFms)) 100%  FEERRERES
893,022  (ZB-/~E:100%)  BERTSEERE
HR21 Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong HK$2 93%  Development of computer
(2016: 93%) software and provision
of maintenance services
BB & 2T N% FESHBARRMRE
(Z3-~EF:9%)  RE
World Sky International Limited British Virgin Islands* ~ Hong Kong 1 share of USS$1 100%*  Investment holding
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e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15. RIB AT 2= (&)

(Continued)
Particulars of Percentage
issued and paid of ownership
Place/country of Place of up capital/ interest held by
Name of company incorporation operation registered capital the Company  Principal activities
BRARMERE/ KARFRHE
WEARER AMATEY/BR  EENE HERFE BB EAL IEER
tRERERAR EBRANE" £ 1REE 100%  REAR
ETZBRG  (ZF—75F 1 100%")
2 EARE(RINERAR PRC** PRC HK$87,000,000 100%  Design and sales of gold
(Hong Kong Jewellery Co., (2016: 100%) and
(Shenzhen) Limited®) jewellery products
e B 87,000,000 100% HHAREEEERHEER
(ZZ-7E100%)
MIFERESERZAERAT  PRCH PRC Renminbi 100%  Development of computer
(Excel Solution Technology Limited®) (“RMB") 6,000,000 (2016: 100%) software and provision
of maintenance services
Tk el ARE(ARE]) 100% HEERLHRRERE
6000000  (ZF-~E:100%) B
TREH(RINERAR PRC** PRC HKS 100%  Development of computer
(Excel Software (Shenzhen) 20,000,000 (2016: 100%) software and provision
Co., Limited®) of maintenance services
g e 20,000,007 100% FEERSHREREE
(ZE-7~E100%) BB
TRAEEARR(L8)ERAR  PRCH PRC Uss 100%  Provision of professional
(Excel Technology (Shanghai) 1,700,000 (2016: 100%) services and systems
Co., Limited®) integration
g hE 1,700,000 100% RESXBBRZGEK
(ZF—7%F 1 100%)
TEAERE (N ERAR PRC** PRC US$70,000 100%  Provision of professional
(Excel Global IT Services (Hangzhou) (2016: 100%) services
Limited®)
R i 70,0005 100% RESERB

=

(ZZ—75F 1 100%)
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. KRB AR 2= (2)
(Continued)
Particulars of Percentage
issued and paid of ownership
Place/country of Place of up capital/ interest held by
Name of company incorporation operation registered capital the Company  Principal activities
ERTRAZRE/ RRRAEAE
HEARER AMATEY/BR  EEME EMERGFE BEEZAMM ITER
HIEARERAERAR Taiwan* Taiwan New Taiwan 100%  Provision of professional
(New River Information Technology Dollar ("NT$") (2016: 100%) services
& Services Co.%) 11,913,620
=) & = mak 100% REEXRHS
([Frakl) (257 1 100%)
11,913,620
SEREBRSBERHEIARL PRC** PRC RMB 100%  Development of computer
BRAR 10,000,000 (2016: 100%) software and provision
(Dongguan Excel International of maintenance services
Finance and Technology Incubation
Centre Company Limited®)
e el AR10,000,0007 100% HEERSHRRERE
(ZB-7RE100%) &
# Issued capital held directly by the Company J RRABEEFEEBITRAR
& Limited liability company * BRAR]
£ Wholly foreign-owned enterprise *x INEBEE
e The English names of the PRC companies are translation ® NN = PRl = - -

of their Chinese names for identification purpose only
and are not their official names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to the subsidiaries of the Group which have material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"). The details and the
summarised financial information, before intragroup

eliminations, are as follows:

15.

RE AR 2= (2

TREIAEEMB LR ZHEEER
ZERREEEAIFF R ([ IR E
@)  ERFBEYBERBMECRETSE
BARBMEHE)HIMT

2017
—E—tF

Excel

System

i21 HR21 (Beijing)

Limited Limited Limited

i21 HR21 ItEEBEER

Limited Limited BRERAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET TEx

NCI percentage FERERA DL 19.9% 7% =

Current assets MEVEE 818 16,422 -

Non-current assets FRBEE = 2 =

Current liabilities mBEE (43,008) (16,922) S

Net liabilities BEHE (42,190) (498) =

Carrying amount of NCI IR E S < BREE (2,152) 419 =

Revenue WA - 6,995 -

(Loss)/Profit for the year FRN(EE),/EH (10) 96 =

Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2EFAY),WMABE (10) 9 =
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI NEEFERER 2

(E518),/ & 7l (2) 6 -

Dividend paid to NCI EEERERRE = = =

Cash flows from operating activities RETBMELECRENRE 20 1,561 -

Cash flows from investing activities REFHMELECHENE - 39 -

Cash flows from financing activities

MELRDFELZRERE
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15. RMIEB AT 2R &)

(Continued)
2016
2R
Excel
System
21 HR21 (Beijing)
Limited Limited Limited
i21 HR21 JtRAEREER}
Limited Limited RERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
NCI percentage FEREZB DL 19.9% 7% 35%
Current assets mBEE 817 14,983 32,994
Non-current assets ERBEE - 14 1,038
Current liabilities REAE (42,996) (15,591) (42,333)
Net liabilities BEHE (42,179) (594) (8,301)
Carrying amount of NCI IR 2 BREE (2,150) 413 (2,905)
Revenue WA - 6,399 18,748
(Loss)/Profit for the year FA(EBB),/ 57 (13) 54 (12,272)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2E(AX) A BE (13) 54 (12,272)
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI DECEIEERER
(B18), /& H (3) 4 (4,296)
Dividend paid to NCI BT FEERERR S - - =
Cash flows (used in)/from operating mETEH(BE)EE
activities ZHERE (2) 1,967 214
Cash flows used in investing activities REEZBMBACRERE - - (26)
Cash flows from financing activities REEDMEACZHERE - - -
16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. R—RBE QAT RS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$000 HK$'000
FE&T T
Cost of investment in an associate WE— g R E 2 KA 5,131 5,131
Share of post-acquisition results and FEIGUW RS 2 B R HA
other comprehensive income, Z2HERA - KRB WS
net of dividends received 2,391 (3,141)
Share of net assets B EEFE 7,522 1,990
Amount due from an associate FE UL — eI B & N BRI FRIE - 15,504
7,522 17,494
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16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2016,
the amount is classified as non-current as the Group
did not intend to demand repayment from the associate
within the next twelve months.

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associate, having a
reporting date of 31 December, whose quoted market
price is not available as at 31 December 2017 are as
follows:

16.

R—EBENT 2ER#)

FEWE & N RIFRIA R EER - Tt B RA
BEREE R-T—RFE+-A=1+—
B ZRERSBRIERY - AAKEE
BERARE+—EAREZRBEAREE

AEEZHEMAT=A=+—ARR=
T tF A=t —BETEHEZE
EBBE AR ZFENT ¢

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of interest held
Form of incorporation issued and indirectly by
Name of associate business structure and operation paid up capital the Company  Principal activities
A BRTR b NG|
BENTER ¥BERES REEHY BRRRARE GAEZASL  TEER
Excel Technology International Incorporated Hong Kong HK$4,873,889 50% (2016: 50%)  Development of computer
{Hong Kong) Limited software, systems integration
and the provision of
maintenance services
TEMER(BE)ERAH a1 AT &% 4,873,889% 7T 50% REBHEARZLSAAR

Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited
("Excel HK") is accounted for an associate as the Group
has 40% of voting rights despite the Group's equity
interest in Excel HK is 50%. Excel HK is a strategic
partner for the Group's growth in the development
of computer software and the provision of systems
integration, professional services and maintenance
services through its expertise.

(CT-AF 50%  RERERE
EEREER(EE)ARAA(ERE
B RBEAATAR  AAEERZEE
HERIRE0% - 1825 AEA0% MR -
EREBAEEE Y HESA B - B
gy o ER B S ARIERE
RER - BERBRRERE T EALE
EED ST

TEFFR HEERERARAE 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

16.

124

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continved) 16. R—EBE QN B 2w (&)

Set out below are the summarised financial information

of the Group's associate, Excel HK, which are accounted EHRER I ESRY| T

for using the equity method:

AEBRAEGEARZIBERRERE

2017 2016

—EB—tF AN

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T T

Non-current assets EREEE 340 899

Current assets MBNVEE 76,238 45,856

Current liabilities mEaE (61,535) (42,775)

Net assets BEFE 15,043 3,980

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FETT

Revenue Weas 133,970 110,596
Profit/(Loss) for the year and total FR#HF (BB REA
comprehensive income/(expense) 2EBA(FX)B5E

for the year 11,063 (3,301)

Dividend received from the associate A E N FUE AR B - -

Group's share of results of FAREEEGHEE
the associate for the year NAEIHEE 5,532 (1,651)
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16.

—tF+A=+—HILFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 16.

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial

R—BBE N7z

Ve

= )

FRBMEFBEMERERBTBRENE

information to the carrying amount of the investment in EEZHERT :
Excel HK is set out below:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Total net assets of the associate B NmBE FEER 15,043 3,980
Proportion of the ownership interest REBFREEERZ
held by the Group B 50% 50%
The Group's share of net assets of AEBERBE AR Z
the associate BEFE 7,522 1,990
Amount due from an associate AN P - 15,504
Carrying amount of the interest in E" B N B RERSTE
the associate in the consolidated AV BHRE ZRAE
financial statements 7,522 17,494

—tFFR  HEE
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18.

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. JHHEHEESRMEE
ASSETS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Unlisted private equity fund FETMRABRZEES
Fair value NREE 2,543 2,543
Less: provision for impairment o ORERE (2,543) (2,543)
Unlisted equity investments LM ARE
Cost [B# 3,900 3,900
Less: provision for impairment W BB (3,900) (3,900)
DEVELOPMENT COSTS 18. BRI
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T T
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HBR+=-A=+—H
Cost DN 7,052 7,052
Accumulated amortisation BT 8 (7,052) (7,052)
Net book amount REFE = =

126

The development costs represented all direct costs
incurred in the development of enterprise software
products and were fully amortised in prior years.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. &

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT

Jewellery Products KREER
Raw materials R 1,995 2,488
Work in progress R m 500 2,698
Finished goods BUAK TR 33,569 32,808
36,064 37,994

20.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK

15

20. Bl (B EFEHNIER

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Contract costs incurred plus recognised EEEEHKAINE R A
profits less recognised losses BE R R 27,538 39,726
Less: progress billings B EERESE (22,048) (37,974)
5,490 %752

Recognised in the consolidated REEMBRRRERS
statement of financial position as:
Amounts due from customers for B E F& A TEFKIE
contract work 7,707 4,767
Amounts due to customers for BREFAEHIERIE
contract work

(2,217) (3,015)

5,490 1,752

All amounts due from/(to) customers for contract work
are expected to be recovered/(settled) within one year.

FraRYE, (BR)EPAMTEFAEY
R —FRiE,(EE) -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

128

1. BRE SR

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Trade receivables FEI B 5 IR K 13,613 14,115
Less: provision for impairment of receivables J& : & K8 R (B R 5 (106) (99)
13,507 14,016

Trade receivables for IT Products and Services are due
within 0 — 60 days (2016: 0 — 90 days) from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 90 days
overdue are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted.

The Group's sales of gold and jewellery products
comprised mainly cash sales and credit card sales to
retail customers and credit sales to franchisees which
are due within 0 — 60 days from the date of billing.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of trade receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods at their inception.

Based on the invoice dates (or date of revenue
recognition if earlier), the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of provision for impairment, was as
follows:

BB E m R IR 2 FE W E 5 RN 3%
BERAEFAZTERNTRH(ZZE—RF: TEN
THEIREIH - AR E8NTHEZE
BAREBERMREEEHREK T BER
E—FEE -

AEB B RREEMEETERRER
TEEPZREHERERRHEE - UK
ARFFINERZEEHE  EEHNEEE
BEZENTEAZIE -

AEEEER PRI ERARBHRN

BRERWEZER AN BEEEKREEL
BERER -

REZEZABORBARER B H(HE
) RRESER(EHRRERE) 2
RREDITA0T

2017 2016

—E—tF —ERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#& T T

0 - 30 days 0- 30H 12,099 8,614
31 - 60 days 31- 60H 1,042 349
61 — 90 days 61- 90H 135 409
Over 90 days B0 H 231 4,644
13,507 14,016
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

21.

EWE SRR &)

FEWE B ERFOR B R 2 2B T

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Balance at the beginning of the year REVZ 858 99 180
Amount written off during the year FAME SR - (75)
Exchange differences FEH =5 7 (6)
Balance at the end of the year RERZ RFER 106 99

At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual
and collective basis. Based on this assessment, no
impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. The impaired
trade receivables are due from customers experiencing
financial difficulties that were in default or delinquency of
payments.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that
were past due as at the reporting date but not impaired,
based on due date is as follows:

5

REE2HAY - AEESHEUFIAERE
IRBERS  UEEESAMERE

BEZ  BE_E—+FR_F—N
F+-A=+—HLEFEIRERREES
B o BEZEWE SRR IEE RS BE
SRS H /R SRAENEA S R RER -

REHE RERAHACDBBEEREZ
AEERKEZRKZREAITOT

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FBTT

Neither past due nor impaired R BRI R (B 12,091 5,270
1 — 90 days past due #HA1 - 90H 1,250 4,102
Over 90 days past due HHAEBB90 H 166 4,644
13,507 14,016

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, trade receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired are related to
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

RIBE—+FR-_FB—FRFt+_A=1+—
B RO TMEREZERESER 1
R B R R 2 B -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EWEZERR &)
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired CERHEEREZEKRE SRR  FERD
related to customers that had a good track record of REBBRIFEERHEIER - RIBBAF
credit with the Group. Based on past credit history, JIEBE:  BEBHEENERLESE
management believe that no impairment allowance is HETREBERE  RAREEEXZTES
necessary in respect of these balances as there has REfh - BESKDEAE R 28D -
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22. HibFEWEIE « e RAEM
AND PREPAYMENTS yi=]
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Other receivables (note (i) HoAth U IR (B REG)) 3,392 6,113
Deposits e 822 517
Amount due from an investee company FEUIEE 2 B 5 TE (FTEEGi))

(note (ii)) - 4,480
Amount due from an associate (note (iii)) JE MBS 5 B SRR (B (i) 6,010 =
Prepayments NG S 10,590 5,962

20,814 17,072
Notes: PitsE

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the Group has determined
other receivables of HK$10,514,000 (2016: HK$Nil)
as individually impaired and impairment loss on other
receivables of HK$10,514,000 has been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$Nil). The individually impaired other receivables relate
to debtors that were not expected to be recoverable
and the Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

(ii) As at 31 December 2017, the amount due from an
investee company has been fully repaid.

As at 31 December 2016, the amount due is unsecured,
interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable within
one year.

(iii) The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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23.

24.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$11,676,000 (2016: HK$11,914,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
PRC’'s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE/LIABILITIES DIRECTLY
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

The Group has decided to dispose of a subsidiary, Excel
System (Beijing) Limited (“Excel BJ") during the year
ended 31 December 2016. Subsequent to 31 December
2016, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of Excel BJ and the disposal was completed in January
2017. The assets and liabilities of Excel BJ were
presented as held for sale as at 31 December 2016.
Details of the disposal are set out in note 34.

23.

24.

BERBITEMR

REB 2R RRITHEHEHE11,676,000
BT(ZE—7NF 11,914,000/ 7T) 77
WA BESEREITAARBEHEZRITE
Ko AREETTERLBRER - BB
fR B 2 HNEE R E IR RO R A TE - BEE K&
HEGEFIIRTE - AEBREESBERR
ETINERBEB ZRTBARBLRE
HNEE o

TEARELEEE HO R
REFLHEEEEENEBEZR
&

REE_ZT—A"F+_A=+—HLHF
o AEEREHE—FHBARILREE
BRERNEERAR(IRER]) - K=
T—ARFE+-_A=+—H%  AEEE—
EBUE=FANT —BEERELEL
g HER-—T—+F— B%m o b
REBNEERABRZZE—"F+=A
=+—HENAFELE - BEFBHT
RHIFE34 o

Assets classified as held for sale THEABFEHESE
2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 1,038
Amounts due from customers for contract work EREFAE4HTIERE 17,560
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 51 N B b B IR 8,895
Cash and bank balances He MR EEY 5,534
33,027
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24.

25.

132

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE/LIABILITIES DIRECTLY
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale

24. PEARBEHESE HLE
AREHESEEEHEHBA
&)

HyBARFFHEEEEEHERBZA
&
2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FA&T

Amount due to customers for contract work ERERPALHIERE 21
Trade and other payables BB ZERR R EMER IR 30,380

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its third party suppliers credit
periods ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Based on the

30,401

25. BNEZRMN

F=THERETAKRBEZEERNF=
THEANTH  -REXZAH  ENES

invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables IR ZEREBR DT ¢
were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T T
0 - 30 days 0-30H 981 418
Over 90 days HBiE90H 159 148
1,140 566

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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26.

27.

28.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 26.
CHARGES

Htt BRI REAREREN

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T

Deferred income for maintenance services {R%& IR% < IEIEUT A 6,843 10,540
Deposits from customers and franchisees REEFE RIFHFNBRE2IES 1,557 2,228
Other payables E ST 50R 8,469 8,074
Accrued charges TEIRE 5,065 4,469
21,934 25,3l

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of other payables and accrued charges are considered to
be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

PMETRBERLE  MRBEMENR
BRERERAZIEEESAABEZARE
R -

=k
AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 27. BHESFR
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest- ERESFAREEN - 2RURIZEKR
free and repayable on demand. RiE -
SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRX
2017 2016
“B-tF ZERE
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
RPEE TR Rir & A THET
Authorised: ATE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREBBT L ERR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Bk
+-A=1+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Bk
+-R=1—-H 1,188,460,000 118,846  1,188,460,000 118,846

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

EBREFEAGRURBTRERZBRE
BERRARAERE LR BRBROK —
R -MALEREARBAZNGEESTR
R
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

134

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

29. AR\ R T

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt FH T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SN £ - =
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TERTRIE 659 302
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A B FIE 44,698 87,124
Cash and bank balances He MIRITIER 7 24
45,364 87,450
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges  H{thfE{t 718 & TEIRE 2,217 1,468
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAH B R R FUB 64,753 64,753
Amounts due to directors ENESFIE 20,538 15,046
87,508 81,267
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(ER) EESE (42,144) 6,183
Total assets less current liabilities ZEABERAHEE (42,144) 6,183
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) BEFE (42,144) 6,183
EQUITY B
Share capital &N 28 118,846 118,846
Reserves Gt 30 (a) (160,990) (112,663)
(Capital deficiencies)/Total equity (EAE4l) IRIELLE (42,144) 6,183
Li Xia E-3=c} Chong Yu Ping HEY¥
Director BF Director o
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30. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

30

The movement of the Company’s reserves

are as follows:

. e

(a) ZAQFZHEEBHMT :

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
B3R E eS| e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TExT TEx
(note 30 (b))
(PFi§5E30(b))
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—7~E—H—H 220,438 (280,631) (60,193)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREZERT AR
expense for the year - (52,470) (52,470)
At 31 December 2016 and RZF—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—HK
—T—+F—H—H 220,438 (333,101) (112,663)
Loss and total comprehensive FABRBREZEMTEH
expense for the year - (48,327) (48,327)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+t&
+=ZBA=+-—-H 220,438 (381,428) (160,990)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda

Companies Act.

(b) BRHBRE

B EERZERMTBRERRE

FA0IKEEE -
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31.

32.

136

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings payable by the Group are
as follows:

31.

REHERE

RERBHY - NAEERBENATHHE LS
HERLHIEEMBEAEZZERS
RN AT BRI S

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 5,680 4,420
In the second to fifth years BE_FZERF 2,270 3,963
7,950 8,383

The Group leases the land and buildings under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three
(2016: one to three) years, with an option to renew the
lease and renegotiated the terms at the expiry dates
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had provided
guarantee for the associate, Excel HK to a third party,
in respect of all monies owed by and/or the obligations
and liabilities of Excel HK to the third party under a
service contract to the extent of HK$3,331,000 (2016:
HK$5,518,000). At 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
provision for the Group's obligation under the guarantee
contract has been recognised as there was no amount
due by Excel HK to the third party and the directors
considered that it was not probable that the service
obligations to be performed by Excel HK would not be
met.
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AR EEBREE KRR E 2 A BER
M REFHER - BOB T REER
B o

MBERER

RZZE—+E+=-A=+—8 ~x&EED
REHERNREBBEBRE—MDRBEELHM
BNTF—RE=AZHAERRK XET
et AEBEEBMZEE=-HIRE
% PR A3,331,0008 L ( ZF— /N F ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBAERZ

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BT S REe I mREMITMATIRER
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, 5,/ BRSO - ERAEB IR ETT
during the year, the Group had the following material LWTEARS :

transactions with related parties:

2017 2016
Bt —T—RF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
B A RHEME THERT FHET
Companies in which the directors of the Company
have interests
ARAERHARR L AF
- Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited* Sales of gold and jewellery products - 217
IMBEERERR AR
("Baidi Jewellery”) (notes a, c)
- N ERRERRAR([BHKE]) (Mita - ¢) HEHSRKEER
- Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Culture Development Co. Ltd.* Purchase of packaging materials for - 29
R E IR E XL BERBR AT the brand H.K. JEWELRY
("Didi Culture”) (notes a, c)
- YR E BB ER AR (N ) (e ~ c) BERBKEREZBEME
- Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company Limited*Purchase of showcases for 224 124
MdEEERAFR AR the brand H.K. JEWELRY
("Didi Showcases") (notes a, ¢)
-mMaaEERAERAR(MadREA]) (Fsta - c) BEAAKEMECERE
- Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Limited* Operating lease charges on land 2,386 2,252
AYTEERE S HRHERDA] and building
("Shenzhen Yihua") (notes b, c)
- RIMEERE RO BRDF(DRIEZE]) (Hzb o THREFLLHEEER
Sales of gold and jewellery products 105 -

HEREUREEM
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

138

33. EBAEXRZ#®)

(Continued)
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
B A REME THET FHET
Associate
BEAR
- Excel HK Professional fee received 36,668 29,063
- THEE BEUEEER
Professional fee paid 12,055 7,812
BENEEER
Purchase of complementary 12,014 1,281
hardware and software
EEREREFRUM
Administration expenses 1,440 960
reimbursements
THRELHE
Notes: PitsE
(a) Baidi Jewellery, Didi Culture and Didi Showcases (a) HHEKE - mEsUb RdEE A S Rl f
are owned as to 90%, 100% and 100% respectively MU B ERDERAFIFEHEIO
by Hangzhou Didi Investment Joint Stock Company 100% &% 100% # 2z + A i i 4% &
Limited* (471N i 38 3% & IR {5 B R 2 &), which in turn A&7 78 PR A B F ki 5t A QSRR 5T
is owned as to 90% by Mr. Lin Feifei, Mr. Lin Di's HERBFIO% R - RZTE—+tF+=
father, who is a shareholder of the Company as at 31 A=+—H  WEELEERRAR 2K
December 2017. Mr. Lin Di was a shareholder of the RoREEZZT-—R"E+ZA=+T—H
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 and IEFE - MakEARRARZRE @ I
resigned as an executive director of the Company on 30 RZZE—RFTA=THBFELRRFH
October 20175. TESE o
(b) Shenzhen Yihua is a shareholder of the Company as (b) RZE—tFRZZF-—RF+ZA=+

at 31 December 2017 and 2016 and is owned as to
approximately 75% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping, an executive
director of the Company.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—-A=+—HIFFE

33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The above related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

These transactions were conducted in the Group's
normal course of business and at mutually agreed prices
and terms.

* The English names of the PRC companies are translation
of their Chinese names for identification purpose only
and are not their official names.

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel of the Group are members
of the board of directors, as well as certain senior
management personnel. Key management personnel
remuneration includes the following expenses:

33. EBAEXRZ #)

BRE - ()

() LI BARE TS R 5 AR BER B R
WERZH(EHERGEM EmARANE =+

)

BEZXSHHRAEREREXBRETRE
7 RAB 2B R ARFAETT o

* ZERHAR X AR EZEBRES
NEW c EHBR  WIEHEREHE -

FEEEAEME
AEETEEBABREEERENRET
SREEAR - TEEEAEHMESEET
IR :

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Short term employee benefits CHE B @A 2,496 2,255
Post employment benefits BB 2@ A 121 123
2,617 2,378
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34. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF 34. HE FHKEAT
SUBSIDIARIES
(a) On 18 January 2017, the Group disposed of (a) RZZB—+F—A+//\H ' K£H
Excel BJ to an independent third party at a cash LAZRE 4 R {E2,000,000/8 LA — %
consideration of HK$2,000,000. BUE=FHEILRES o
HK$'000
FETT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which RHEEZBAREEHEZ
control was lost at the date of disposal: EEREBEDF:
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITFER 993
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB NEE 1,038
Amounts due from customers for contract work ~ EWREFEA X TI2FHIE 17,560
Trade and other receivables P B 5 AR 3k I B R MR IR 11,718
Other payables and accrued charges HEtENFIERTEREA (28,758)
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEPEHIIENIE (21)
Amounts due to the Group FEfT AN S B FRIE (12,227)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZAEFE (9,697)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—EHB AR :
Consideration received BERE 2,000
Net liabilities disposed of LEZBEFE 9,697
Non-controlling interests eV M e (3,393)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of I P BB X R il i P
net liabilities of the subsidiary reclassified from BlREEN OB ABREZ
equity to profit or loss on loss of control of B ARaEFERBERT
the subsidiary EH =5 4,055
Gain on disposal s 12,359
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRERAFE
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents WEUIE & RIEESEYRE 2,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZIRENIREEEY (993)
1,007
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34. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF 34. HE FHBAT (2

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, a (b) REBEZ2-_ZE—X"F+=-_A=+—8H
subsidiary of the Company, Excel System Limited IEFE - AAE]—EHE 2 BExcel
was voluntarily deregistered. The net liabilities of System Limited B FEsF 84 ° Excel
Excel System Limited on the date of deregistration System LimitedAsE8H 2 HRUFE
was as follows: [V

2016
—TE—REF
HK$'000
T
Net liabilities deregistered of: Pk FaE :

Amount due from a fellow subsidiary FE — R R B AR R FIA 2,295
Amount due to an immediate holding company FER —EE IR A R A 5IE (4,911)
(2,616)

Add: waiver of amount due to an immediate o BReEMS —EEEERAF
holding company HFIE 4,911

Add: waiver of amount due from a fellow m: HerEk—HRRMNEAR
subsidiary EOpZ O] (2,295)
Less: non-controlling interests R FERE R A -
Gain/(Loss) on deregistration AR EEmEL Z kS (B18) -

35. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL 35. BA—ZHEBLASIZEEIES

INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HE—_T— A E+-_A=+—HILEE -

acquired an additional 34% equity interests in &I ANEEE AR S EHMEEREEER

TRHEGTEMZ MBI E at a consideration of HK$4. NEEEINIA% RHE - REABAEIT o B

As a result of the acquisition, the difference between RETZEKE B EEIEE RS

the consideration paid and the carrying amount of non- BEmS%E Y MM =%276,0008 T © B E

controlling interests of HK$276,000 was recognised in BAREEERREDR o

the capital reserve.
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36.

37.

142

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36. MEERBHELE ZEEHK
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from ARERBMEEHELECRBEEYAIHME
financing activities can be classified as: K
Amounts due
to directors
ENESIER
HK$°000
F# T
At 1 January 2017 R-—E—+&—A—H 15,046
Financing cash flows BMERSRE 5,492
At 31 December 2017 RZBE—+tF+-_A=+—H 20,538
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. KEREE
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of AEERNEBERBBETRERERE
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations ARTEAEMTAMAEN SRR -
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include SRR B 1A T 55 R (B 4R SINEE R B % ) =R
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest Rk - EERERREBERE
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages AEEEGRBERARTMEEEMHR
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk. & - WERETERERERR - AEEE
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk RRERF BRI ARTERE - WD
management and seeks to limit the Group's exposure to HAEEARZZ WERBRHERK - EF
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews RN MAREESHABRAR ZBR -
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.
There has been no change to the type of the Group's AEERPREHTARBRZEEREE
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the BERFFEARARR 2 TAHERS) -

manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. UBEREERE®)

(Continued)

37.1 Categories of financial assets and

37.1 eMEEREEBE2ET

liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the %ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%%iﬂﬁ_ﬁﬁiﬁljz,ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
consolidated statement of financial position relate BATERz REERERMAR:

to the following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities:

2017 2016
—Z—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHEIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE
— Unlisted private equity fund —FELFTRLAREES - -
— Unlisted equity investments —JEEmRAKE - -
Loans and receivables fa R e W kI8
— Trade receivables —RUWEZERR 13,507 14,016
- Other receivables and deposits —HE i EUGRIA R IRS 9,076 7,376
— Cash and bank balances — B RIRTTER 25,675 24,507
48,258 45,899
Financial liabilities cRBE
Financial liabilities measured at R AGTE 2
amortised cost SHERE
— Trade payables — BB SRR 1,140 566
— Other payables and accrued charges —HE i EARIER
THIRER 15,091 14,771
— Amounts due to directors —ERNEENIR 20,538 15,046
36,769 30,383
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

37. BIREKRER &)

37.2 SNERE

37.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk arise from its overseas sales
and purchases, which are primarily denominated in
United States Dollar (“US$"), RMB and Japanese
Yen (“JPY"). These are not the functional
currencies of the Group entities to which these
transactions relate.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

4NEEE [ B2 15 (R I8 R B2 8 i S8 B &
TAZRAABERKEARARRERE
HIREBS AR - AEBEXZ
SNEREBIFEEEEBUET(E
T AREERBE(HE]E
ZEINEE RIREE - EEBIWIE
HREER G2 RNEEERE 28

MHNBESHEZ SR EER B EEK

liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, TERBE BB T ¢

are as follows:
Us$ RMB JPY
EH AR H

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET FTET TExT

At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—t&
+t=A=+—H
Cash and bank balances R RIRITIF 1,104 127 -
At 31 December 2016 RN-ZB—RE
+=B=+-—H
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITFER 787 120 277

As the rate of exchange between HK$ and US$ AT T RIT B RS E &
is controlled within a tight range, the foreign BR - NERBRITEKR - A&
currency risk is considered to be insignificant. BFXrZAZXARBRBEZEBY
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of 2o

fluctuation in RMB and JPY.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B % L B

(Continued)

37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

37.2 SNERME)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group's loss after income tax for the year
and equity in regard to an appreciation in the
Group entities’ functional currencies against
RMB and JPY. These sensitivity rates represent
management’s best assessment of the possible
change in foreign exchange rates.

TRHBAFEARNEERATEHE
EiERERE N EEEEE R
BEESARBERAEAEZSK

J; ZE WZJ*IZT%EE%@;TE

AR BB v RAEME -
Sensitivity Increase Decrease
rate in loss in equity

HRELS  BEEM EZED

HK$'000  HK$'000
% FTERT TR

2017 —E—+F
RMB ARME
JPY B

2016 —E—RF
RMB AR
JPY S|

The same % depreciation in the Group entities’
functional currencies against the respective foreign
currencies would have the same magnitude on
the Group's loss for the year and equity but of
opposite effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during
the year depending on the volume of overseas
transactions. Nevertheless, the analysis above is
considered to be representative of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk.

3% (4) (4)
5% = =
3% (4) (4)
5% (14) (14)

AEBEEBAERYEERE AR
ERRLLOINRE  HAEEFA
ERkESEEHAREERARNF
@ .

FRZIERBRIORREIR Z
B o A - B DR AR RR
REBRAR ZINERR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

146

37.3

374

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances and amount due
from an investee company.

The exposure to interest rates for the Group's
bank balances is considered immaterial and the
Group's amount due from an investee company is
interest bearing at fixed rate.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from trade and other receivables and bank
balances.

The Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk
on recognised financial assets is limited to the
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
as summarised in note 37.1.

Management has a credit policy in place for
approving the credit limits and the exposures to
credit risk are monitored such that any outstanding
debtors are reviewed and followed up on an
ongoing basis. The Group's policy is to deal only
with creditworthy counterparties. The Group has
certain concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade receivables as 57% (2016: 20%) of the total
trade receivables was due from a customer.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

37. BKRREE#)

37.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk for bank balances is considered
negligible as the counterparties are reputable
banks with high quality external credit ratings.
In respect of credit risk associated with trade
and other receivables, the management closely
monitors all outstanding debts and reviews the
collectability of the receivables periodically.
Customers of IT Products and Services with
balances that are more than 90 days overdue are
required to settled all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables, and also in respect of
its cash flow management. The Group's objective
is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's
remaining contractual maturities for its financial
liabilities will be either on demand or within one
year. The carrying amounts of its financial liabilities
approximate their contractual undiscounted cash
flow.

374 FERME(E)

HRRZH A TIINREEFRES
ZEEBZRIT - BIRITHERZ(E
ERBRFRAM T RE - sLEEYK
B 5 RN E M RIRAERE 2 (F
ERRns  EREERREEMA
AEEER - REHEHERITR
ZANREIER - EErEEE N+
BzEBMMRERRREEFBE
BEZMAREEGHRIRT ] BER
E—FEE  ARE-RAEBER
FPERGEAERR -

B EL R

MBS R AREREEBR
NREREMEMEET AEITE
HeMmBaERBERE AR - A&
B BB BN B B AR H AR
FENRERSREETEMATR
IR - AREZ B RENER
MBEENEE KT - ARRERE
HERPRDESFEL

RZE—+FRZZF—X"F+=A
=+—H r5EcHEENEG
R TR HRERBR S AR Bkl —F
Ao AEBSRHEBENRAERE
AHIARBBEHRESRERSE °

CFEFHR HERARERERAE 147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —E—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

38.

39.

148

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and
raises new debt financing.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

On 20 December 2017, the Company announced a
proposed rights issue (“Rights issue”) of 594,230,000
rights shares at HK$0.1 per rights share on the basis
of one rights share for every two existing shares held.
Further details of the Rights Issue were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 20 December
2017, 18 January 2018, 12 February 2018 and 28
February 2018.
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38.

39.

BEXEHE
AEE 2 EAEEABAEAHERRE

EHBE MmN R EBERRAKEAEN
FEQERY  ABRRREHREOER -

AEERGMTEREERRBETRI R
BE - WARKERREZBCELRAE
RABRERRRE  AEEHSHABRKNTT
BRHBE R - BITHRO KETHE

BEHRREE

RZEBE—+F+-A=+8 K2F=E
i BEEREEERRRERMNOEE —
P& AR AR A% 193 2 B 2E LA IR 5 IR B AR AR AR
A% 10.17% 7T 8 17594,230,000 % {1 A% B 15
([#A]) - BEAHRKRNE—PFBHNE
ARAPE_TE—tF+=-A=1+H =
EZ—NE—A+1\H - —E—N\F-A+
—HEZE-/N\FZAZT+NBHRE -
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